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2021
1,066,479,471.31 97.93
22 .566,896.85 2.07
1,089,046,368. 16
( 87,211 ) 100.00
2021
751,404,435.24 81.45
65,456,333.41 7.10
20,105, 808.00 2.18
14,489 ,174.72 1.57
149,410,633.94 16.20
34,559,732.99 3.75
10,395,322.26 1.13
149,514,607.75 16.21
26,225,988.26 2.84
922,532,821.07
( 73,876 ) 100-00
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2021

1 | Gotdman Sachs Institutional Funds, plc - Goldman 6,462,336.98 159.43 1,030,298,307.05 165.03 1,066,479,471.31 97.93
Sachs Australia Enhanced Income Fund

2021
1 | National Australia Bank Ltd FRN 08/16/69 2169 16 1.2700 | 65,383,400.00 0.86 | 55,926,037.82 1.00 | 65,212,770.41 7.07
2 | crown Resorts Ltd FRN 04/23/75 2075 23 4.0204 | 51,795,000.00 0.96 | 49,595,052.09 0.91| 47,134,614.11 5.11
3| COMMONWEALTH AUD 100 2049 12 31 2.8182 | 45,168,800.00 0.97 | 43,842,795.07 1.01| 45,559,420.80 4.94
4 | Brisbane Airport Corp Pty Ltd 4.5% 12/30/30 2030 12 30 4.5000 | 32,750,000.00 1.02 | 33,406,301.94 1.09 | 35,738,774.83 3.87
5 | ANP Ltd FRN 11/15/28 2028 11 15 2.7700 | 32,770,000.00 1.00 | 32,698,183.80 0.96 | 31,476,880.73 3.41
6 | David Jones Finance Pty Ltd FRN 11/28/25 2025 11 28 4.5000 | 30,335,000.00 1.00 | 30,257,042.62 1.00 | 30,334,987.56 3.29
7 | AMP Ltd FRN 12/01/27 2027 12 1.8103 | 30,260,000.00 0.98 | 29,578,999.03 0.96 | 29,001,731.71 3.14
8 | Insurance Australia Group Ltd FRN 06/15/45 2045 15 2.3682 | 27,840,000.00 1.01| 28,095,188.31 1.01| 28,176,087.26 3.05
9 | AusNet Services Holdings Pty Ltd FRN 10/06/80 2080 10 3.1188 | 23,500,000.00 1.00 | 23,500,000.00 1.04 | 24,489,963.35 2.65
10 | credit Agricole SA VAR 05/29/34 2034 29 4.2000 | 22,000,000.00 1.04 | 22,949,801.09 1.08 | 23,843,855.20 2.58
11 | Bank of Queensland Ltd FRN 05/01/28 2028 1.9035 | 22,200,000.00 1.00 | 22,204,300.07 1.01| 22,326,817.50 2.42
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12 | Societe Generale SA 5% 05/19/27 2027 19 5.0000 [ 19,844,000.00 1.08 | 21,366,255.39 1.12 | 22,274,342.31 2.41
13 Sgﬁ;‘;}gg“'o"a' Finance Pty Ltd 5.25% 2025 19 5.2500 | 19,740,000.00 1.08 | 21,266,863.22 1.12| 22,031,038.22 2.39
14 | Suncorp Group Ltd FRN 12/05/28 2028 12 2.1691 | 19,910,000.00 1.01| 20,148,317.80 1.02 | 20,218,529.34 2.19
15 | UBS Group AG VAR 02/27/69 2169 27 4.3750 | 20,000,000.00 1.00 | 20,002,549.06 1.01| 20,105,808.00 2.18
16 | National Australia Bank Ltd FRN 09/20/28 2028 20 2.2138 | 18,367,300.00 0.99 | 18,203,546.31 1.01| 18,561,511.64 2.01
17 | National Australia Bank Ltd FRN 10/19/69 2169 10 19 4.0100 | 18,000,000.00 1.02 | 18,275,371.16 1.03 | 18,504,430.20 2.01
18 | Downer Group Finance Pty Ltd 3.7% 04/29/26 2026 29 3.7000 | 17,400,000.00 1.03| 18,005,079.36 1.06 | 18,420,316.86 2.00
19 égj;gi;;a & New Zealand Banking Gr FRN 2031 26 1.8700 | 18,000,000.00 1.00 | 18,000,000.00 1.02 | 18,280,263.60 1.98
20 | Societe Generale SA VAR 03/12/69 2169 12 4.8750 | 18,000,000.00 1.00| 18,000,000.00 1.02 | 18,273,013.20 1.98
21 | Ampol Ltd FRN 12/09/80 2080 12 3.6200 [ 17,500,000.00 1.00 | 17,500,000.00 1.03 | 18,095,084.00 1.96
22 | SEEK Lttd FRN 06/20/26 2026 20 3.7138 | 18,000,000.00 1.00 | 18,067,950.57 0.99 | 17,857,763.64 1.94
23 | Macquarie Bank Ltd FRN 05/28/30 2030 28 2.9200 | 15,700,000.00 1.00 | 15,754,139.03 1.05 | 16,430,521.00 1.78
24 | Lendlease Finance Ltd 3.4% 10/27/27 2027 10 27 3.4000 | 15,250,000.00 1.00 | 15,227,387.88 1.06 | 16,091,606.33 1.74
25 | WESTPAC BANKING CORP AUD 100.0000 PFD 3.4166 151,348.00 | 100.14 | 15,156,410.32 | 102.72 | 15,546,466.56 1.69
26 | Liberty Financial Pty Ltd FRN 03/06/23 2023 2.6191 | 15,500,000.00 1.00 | 15,519,912.81 1.00 | 15,524,781.40 1.68
27 | Nufarm Finance NZ Ltd FRN 04/16/69 2169 16 4.0052 | 18,026,800.00 0.85 | 15,278,562.62 0.80 | 14,489,174.72 1.57
28 | AWP Life Ltd FRN 12/09/35 2035 12 3.3200 | 14,000,000.00 1.00 | 14,000,000.00 1.02 | 14,322,539.00 1.55
29 | MACQUARIE GRO AUD 100 PFD 4.1700 128,000.00 98.89 | 12,658,010.98 | 106.10 | 13,580,800.00 1.47
(2021
1 | Yarra A$ Cash Reserves Fund 34,559,732.99 1.00 34,559,732.99 1.00 34,559,732.99 3.75
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2020 2021

2013 76,379,830.57 7,980,164,698 9.13 954
2014 49,744,189.17 5,197,272,884 8.24 861
2015 59,912,168.14 6,259,623,327 5.98 625
2016 56,970,642.30 5,952,292,708 6.40 669
2017 30,990,659.53 3,237,904,108 6.59 689
2018 28,831,434.17 3,012,308,242 6.03 630
2019 48,446,307.21 5,061,670,177 5.48 573
2020 49,788,786.22 5,201,932,384 5.35 559
2020 55,118,533.91 5,758,784,423 5.12 535
47,816,078.41 4,995,823,872 4.53 473

51,550,485.01 5,385,994,674 4.88 510

52,469,746.49 5,482,039,113 4.94 516

54,356,890.24 5,679,207,892 5.16 539

55,634,872.13 5,812,731,440 5.37 561

57,101,896.99 5,966,006,198 5.50 575

49,788,786.22 5,201,932,384 5.35 559

10 51,327,946.34 5,362,743,834 5.24 547

11 55,029,701.76 5,749,503,240 5.52 577

12 53,259,162.91 5,564,517,341 5.78 604

2021 53,814,254.65 5,622,513,326 5.80 606

2012 26
2018 28
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2013 89,503,879.46 7,167,470,667 10.13 811
2014 129,976,554 .66 10,408,522,497 9.88 791
2015 164,865,354.37 13,202,417,578 9.10 729
2016 143,729,212.38 11,509,835,327 8.90 713
2017 117,232,957.90 9,388,015,269 9.00 721
2018 171,859,373.26 13,762,498,611 8.94 716
2019 568,908,701.96 45,558,208,853 8.78 703
2020 594,705,892.55 47,624,047,875 8.10 649
2020 672,308,265.16 53,838,445,874 8.63 691
635,445,686.61 50,886,490,584 8.05 645

640,205,185.66 51,267,631,268 8.12 650

638,895,182.58 51,162,726,221 8.12 650

627,344,636.07 50,237,758,456 8.16 653

621,500,459.94 49,769,756,832 8.15 653

618,941,698.69 49,564,851,231 8.14 652

594,705,892.55 47,624,047,875 8.10 649

10 578,117,745.14 46,295,669,031 8.10 649

11 569,924,252 .43 45,639,534,135 8.12 650

12 550,570,209.36 44,089,662,366 8.14 652

2021 540,351,539.27 43,271,351,265 8.16 653
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2013 7,469,784,413 10,172
2014 8,184,213,894 10,011
2015 10,775,093,560 9,337
2016 5,360,559,728 9,138
2017 4,603,090,032 9,271
2018 4,252,511,012 9,244
2019 4,930,245,467 9,134
2020 3,913,809,943 8,602
2020 4,408,733,128 9,039
4,079,086,696 8,434

4,081,581,478 8,515

4,191,268,745 8,539

4,153,646,935 8,597

4,057,080,510 8,610

4,113,171,524 8,622

3,913,809,943 8,602

10 3,867,766,406 8,615

11 3,831,207,813 8,656

12 3,762,378,749 8,698

2021 3,811,242,997 8,742
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2018 104,800,963.23 10,949,604,638 10.16 1,062
2019 331,712,144.29 34,657,284,835 10.24 1,070
2020 347,746,052.51 36,332,507,566 9.72 1,016
2020 402,968,759.08 42,102,175,949 10.19 1,065
371,486,427.94 38,812,901,991 9.53 996

372,172,135.44 38,884,544,711 9.63 1,006

370,732,013.91 38,734,080,813 9.66 1,009

366,696,757.93 38,312,477,269 9.72 1,016

354,738,646.00 37,063,093,734 9.73 1,017

352,555,693.10 36,835,018,815 9.74 1,018

347,746,052.51 36,332,507,566 9.72 1,016

10 340,710,700.01 35,597,453,937 9.73 1,017

11 335,424,335.82 35,045,134,606 9.77 1,021

12 329,638,375.75 34,440,617,498 9.82 1,026

2021 330,768,558.57 34,558,698,999 9.86 1,030
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2012 26 0.77 80
2013

2013 10 0.84 88
2014

2014 10 0.76 79
2015

2015 10 0.36 38
2016

2016 10 0.36 38
2017

2017 10 0.36 38
2018

2018 10 0.36 38
2019

2019 10 0.32 33
2020

2020 0.03 3

0.03 3

0.03 3

0.03 3

0.02 2

0.02 2

0.02 2

0.02 2

10 0.02 2

11 0.02 2

12 0.02 2

2021 0.02 2
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2012 26 0.77 62
2013

2013 10 0.84 67
2014

2014 10 0.84 67
2015

2015 10 0.54 43
2016

2016 10 0.48 38
2017

2017 10 0.48 38
2018

2018 10 0.48 38
2019

2019 10 0.48 38
2020

2020 0.04 3

0.04 3

0.04 3

0.04 3

0.04 3

0.04 3

0.04 3

0.04 3

10 0.04 3

11 0.04 3

12 0.04 3

2021 0.04 3

75/286



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2012 26 440
2013

2013 10 480
2014

2014 10 480
2015

2015 10 280
2016

2016 10 240
2017

2017 10 240
2018

2018 10 240
2019

2019 10 240
2020

2020 20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

10 20

11 20

12 20

2021 20
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2018 28 0.15 16
2018

2018 10 0.36 38
2019

2019 10 0.36 38
2020

2020 0.03 3

0.03 3

0.03 3

0.03 3

0.03 3

0.03 3

0.03 3

0.03 3

10 0.03 3

11 0.03 3

12 0.03 3

2021 0.03 3
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2012 26 1.00
2013
2013 10 0.55
2014
2014 10 18.20
2015
2015 10 13.04
2016
2016 10 8.59
2017
2017 10 3.03
2018
2018 10 3.15
2019
2019 10 3.47
2020
x 100
10.00 10.00
10,000

10.00
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2012 26 9.00
2013
2013 10 5.82
2014
2014 10 0.61
2015
2015 10 3.74
2016
2016 10 6.52
2017
2017 10 4.67
2018
2018 10 3.58
2019
2019 10 2.28
2020
2012 26 6.12
2013
2013 10 3.14
2014
2014 10 1.94
2015
2015 10 0.87
2016
2016 10 4.08
2017
2017 10 2.30
2018
2018 10 1.41
2019
2019 10 3.20
2020
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2018 28 3.10
2018
2018 10 4.33
2019
2019 10 1.56
2020
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2012 - 19,829,446 .66 11,463,030.25 8,366,416.41
5013 (19,829, 446.66) (11,463,030.25) (8,366,416.41)
2013 10 1,596,945.46 3,928,264.03 6,035,007.84
0Lt (1,596,945.46) (3,928,264.03) (6,035,097.84)
2014 10 7,083,728.95 3,106,480.39 10,012, 346.40
5015 (7,083,728.95) (3,106,480.39) (10,012, 346.40)
2015 10 2,126,238.83 3,240,229.78 8,898, 355.45
010 (2,126,238.83) (3,240,229.78) (8,898,355.45)
2016 10 1,300,852.71 5,499,332.83 4,699,875.33
017 (1,300,852.71) (5,499,332.83) (4,699,875.33)
2017 10 1,608,479.14 1,524,040.01 4,784,314.46
5018 (1,608,479.14) (1,524,040.01) (4,784,314.46)
2018 10 5,286,066.20 1,223,293.90 8,847,086.76
5019 (5.286,066.20) (1,223,293.90) (8.,847,086.76)
2019 10 4,022,685.66 3,563,298.97 9,306,473.45
5020 (4,022,685.66) (3.563,298.97) (9,306,473.45)
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2012 - 19,714,285.92 10,878,127.71 8,836,158.21

2013 (19,714,285.92) (10,878,127.71) (8.836,158.21)
2013 10 6,921,628.11 2,600,540.12 13,157,246.20
0L (6,921,628.11) (2,600,540.12) (13,157,246.20)
2014 10 8,194,864.28 3,241,215.43 18,110,895.05
5015 (8,194,864.28) (3,241,215.43) (18,110,895.05)
2015 10 2,541,868.77 4,511,290.73 16,141,473.09
5016 (2,541,868.77) (4,511,290.73) (16,141,473.09)
2016 10 2,252,957.23 5,373,104.64 13,021,325.68
5017 (2,252,957.23) (5,373,104.64) (13,021,325.68)
2017 10 8,936,500.50 2,726,972.47 19,230,853.71
5018 (8,936,500.50) (2,726,972.47) (19,230,853.71)
2018 10 47,528,291.15 1,985,509.24 64,773,635.62
5019 (47,528,291.15) (1,985,509.24) (64,773,635.62)
2019 10 23,448,277.71 14,846,546.86 73,375,366.47
5020 (23,448,277.71) (14,846,546.86) (73,375, 366.47)
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2012 26 977,974.90 243,624.93 734,349.97
2013 (977,974.90) (243,624.93) (734,349.97)
2013 10 313,030.55 229,848.17 817,532.35
5014 (313,030.55) (229,848.17) (817,532.35)
2014 10 778,849.13 442,321.19 1,154,060.29
2015 (778,849.13) (442,321.19) (1,154,060.29)
2015 10 44,419.21 611,864.54 586,614.96
2016 (44,419.21) (611,864.54) (586,614.96)
2016 10 120,877.06 210,985.11 496,506.91
2017 (120,877.06) (210,985.11) (496,506.91)
2017 10 91,999.35 128,484.98 460,021.28
2018 (91,999.35) (128,484.98) (460,021.28)
2018 10 164,999.42 85,245.92 539,774.78
2019 (164,999.42) (85,245.92) (539,774.78)
2019 10 72,611.33 157,403.27 454,982.84
2020 (72,611.33) (157,403.27) (454,982.84)
2018 28 10,328,962.52 14,660.21 10,314,302.31
2018 (10,328,962.52) (14,660.21) (10,314,302.31)
2018 10 25,885,390.67 3,802,649.64 32,397,043.34
2019 (25,885,390.67) (3,802,649.64) (32,397,043.34)
2019 10 12,971,135.46 9,577,566.21 35,790,612.59
2020 (12,971,135.46) (9,577,566.21) (35,790,612.59)
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MATEOMAL AUSTRALLS BAMK LTD FRN 08/16/69 1.2700% T.O07%
CROWWMN RESORTS LTD FRM 04523/75 4.0204% 5.11%
COMMONWEALTH AUD 100 2.8182% 4.94%
BRISBANE AIRPORT CORP PTY LTD 4.5% 12730730 450000 3.87%
AMP LTD FRM 11/15/28 2.7700% 3.41%
DAVID JOMES FINAMNCE PTY LTD FRM 11728725 4. 50000 3.29%
AMP LTD FRN 12701727 1.8193% 314%
INSURAMNCE AUSTRALIA GROUP LTD: FRN 06/ 15/45 2.3682% 3.05%
AUSNET SERVICES HOLDINGS PTY LTD FRN 10005/ 80 3.1 188% 2.65%
CREDIT AGRICOLE 54 VAR 05/29/34 4.2000% 2.58%
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2019 30

2019 30

http://www._lu.tr.mufg. jp/about/privacynotices/PrivacyNoticelnvestors.pdf
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131

23 103

2021 29 80.08
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2020 30

2020 30 2019 30
©) 1,180,962,108 94,571,446 1,179,655,412 94,466,805
(b) 971 78 7,691 616
) 8,300,000 664,664 3,630,000 290,690
23,225,539 1,859,901 563,016 45,086
©) 2,901,356 232,341 27,639,599 2,213,379
@ 12 36,604,073 2,931,254 25,332,319 2,028,612
1,251,994,047 100,259,683 1,236,828,037 99,045,189
©) 20,232,168 1,620,192 1,689,723 135,313
) 620,000 49,650
16,374,500 1,311,270 27,549,965 2,206,201
@) 9,565,539 766,008 565,740 45,304
©) 5,149,258 412,353 2,129,269 170,512
(d) 3,279,070 262,588 2,043,364 163,633
(b) 157,120 12,582 134,225 10,749
©) 98,287 7,871 14,356 1,150
) 96,561 7,733 77,723 6,224
) 66,741 5,345 16,760 1,342
57,096 4,572 57,333 4,591
33,031 2,645 83,720 6,704
) 20,695 1,657 27,449 2,198
(b) 18,932 1,516
1,557 125 849 68
55,131,623 4,414,940 35,029,408 2,805,155
1,196,862,424 95,844,743 1,201,798,629 96,240,034
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2020 30

2020 30 2019 30
(b) 119,925 9,604 105,879 8,479
18,853,492 1,509,788 27,824,465 2,228,183
(7,935,420) (635, 468) 31,191,596 2,497,823
(34,124,800) (2,732,714) 10,370,321 830,455
(16,011,761) (1,282,222) (3,535,410) (283,116)
(39,098,564) (3,131,013) 65,956,851 5,281,825
@) 10,504,440 841,196 5,449,646 436,408
() 10,504,440 841,196 5,447,197 436,212
© 719,010 57,578 264,433 21,176
(b) 661,610 52,982 345,455 27,664
@) 393,916 31,545 205,063 16,421
©) 188,252 15,075 62,609 5,014
163,009 13,054 255,227 20,439
) 158,018 12,654 118,679 9,504
(b) 101,902 8,160 59,159 4,737
58,388 4,676 59,548 4,769
3,928 315 3,915 314
23,456,913 1,878,430 12,270,931 982,656
(62,555,477) (5,009, 443) 53,685,920 4,299,168
(h) 10 62,109,791 4,973,752 30,387,558 2,433,436
(124,665,268) (9,983,195) 23,298,362 1,865,733
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2020 30
2020 30 2019 30
1,201,798,629 96,240,034 408,271,762 32,694,403
434,327,251 34,780,926 863,081,310 69,115,551

(314,598,188)  (25,193,023)  (92,852,805) (7,435,653)

(124,665,268) (9,983,195) 23,298,362 1,865,733

1,196,862,424 95,844,743  1,201,798,629 96,240,034
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2020 30

2020 30 2019 30
(124,665,268) (9,983,195) 23,298,362 1,865,733
21,401 1,714 (2,198) (176)
(h) 10 62,109,791 4,973,752 30,387,558 2,433,436
(119,925) (9,604) (105,879) (8,479)
101,902 8,160 59,159 4,737
(62,552,099) (5,009,172) 53,637,002 4,295,251
©) (4,670,000) (373,974) (2,884,000) (230,951)
(22,662,523) (1,814,815) (563,016) (45,086)
(1,306,696) (104,640)  (776,676,173)  (62,196,228)
©) (620,000) (49,650) (2,417,223) (193,571)
(11,175,465) (894,931) 14,667,954 1,174,610
@) 3,019,989 241,841 1,417,509 113,514
) 1,235,706 98,955 1,337,318 107,092
©) 83,931 6,721 (12,741) (1,020)
©) 49,981 4,002 7,340 588
O 22,895 1,833 89,821 7,193
©) 18,838 1,509 50,944 4,080
708 57 849 68
(237) (19) 4,142 332
) (6,754) (541) 8,817 706
(50, 689) (4,059) 24,423 1,956
18,542,445 1,484,879 1,297,707 103,920
(80,069,970) (6,412,003)  (710,009,327)  (56,857,547)
126,645 10,142 98,188 7,863
(120,834) (9,676) (45,260) (3,624)
(80,064,159) (6,411,538)  (709,956,399)  (56,853,308)
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2020 30 2019 30
459,065,494 36,761,965 849,159,707 68,000,709
(305,598,389)  (24,472,319)  (92,905,189) (7,439,848)
(62,109,791) (4,973,752)  (30,387,558) (2,433,436)
91,357,314 7,315,894 725,866,960 58,127,426

(21,401) 1,714) 2,198 176
11,271,754 902,642 15,912,759 1,274,294
25,332,319 2,028,612 9,419,560 754,318
36,604,073 2,931,254 25,332,319 2,028,612
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2020 30

2011 2010 10

2012 26
2012 26
2012 26

2018 28
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2020 30 2019 30

100
307105

2020 30
738,764,271 724,738,351 2020 30

16,367,657

23,225,539 2019 30
917,590,920 176,869,631 2019 30
27,548,787

563,016
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. 2019

2017
23
12
2019

(b

2020 30 2019 30
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(a '

(c
«

2020 30 2019 30
1,177,782,363 1,179,027,753

(c
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2014 39

2018 39
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2020 30 2019 30

2020 30 2019 30
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(d
2020 30 1,578 36,602,495 36,604,073
2019 30 4,064 25,328,255 25,332,319
(e
2020 30 2019
30
(f
(¢

32
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2020

13

30

2019

30
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2020 30
2020 30
1,177,782,363 1,177,782,363
3,179,745 3,179,745
1,177,782,363 3,179,745 1,180,962,108
2020 30
2020 30
20,232,168 20,232,168
20,232,168 20,232,168
2019 30
2019 30
1,179,027,753 1,179,027,753
627,659 627,659

1,179,027,753 627,659 1,179,655,412
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2019 30
2019 30
1,689,723 1,689,723
1,689,723 1,689,723
2020 30 2019 30
2020 30 2019 30

©
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2020 30 2019 30
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2020 30
@ @
C o ®
41,299 (741) 40,558 40,558
1,277,071 (9,156,378) (7,879,307) 3,660,000 (4,219,307)
(3,673) (3,673) (3,673)
204,390 (162,212) 42,178 42,178
154,314 (8,539,298) (8,384,984) 4,300,000 (4,084,984)
(4,871) (4,871) (4,871)
17,758 (416,375) (398,617) (398,617)
1,484,913 (1,941,597) (456,684) 340,000 (116,684)
(7,023) (7,023) (7,023)
3,179,745 (20,232,168) (17,052,423) 8,300,000 (8,752,423)
€))
@
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2019 30
(O] (€]
)
C ) ® ©
312,042 (22,555) 289,487 289,487
(808,752) (808,752) 760,000 (48,752)
171,037 (12) 171,025 171,025
40,586 (50,191) (9,605) (9,605)
103,994 103,994 103,994
(808,213) (808,213) 808,213
627,659 (1,689,723) (1,062,064) 1,568,213 506,149
@
@

120/286



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

81
taxes or
duty
50

12

2020 30 2019 30

(a

0.80

2020 30 2019 30
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(b
1974 11
0.05
2020 30 2019 30
(c
500 4.0
500 10 3.0

10 2.5
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2020 30 2019 30
«
2020 31
0.80
2020 30 2019 30
(e
0.01
2020 30 2019 30
(f
2020 30 2019 30
(9
0.03

2020 30 2019 30
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10 100
10,000 10,000
10 100
10 100
2020 30 2019 30
(
2018 30 19,230,854 460,021 4,784,314 10,314,302
47,644,798 164,999 5,286,066 25,931,262
(2,000,210) (85,245)  (1,223,293) (3,802,649)
2019 30 64,875,442 539,775 8,847,087 32,442,915
23,411,230 72,611 4,022,685 12,970,082
(15,033, 435) (157,403)  (3,563,299) (9.,860,510)

2020 30 73,253,237 454,983 9,306,473 35,552,487
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2020 30 2019 30
593,714,792 8.104963 569,804,559 8.783055
51,743,370 8,602.077542 67,638,668 9,133.925746
69,464,430 5.349892 71,831,087 5.475981
481,939,832 9.716068 492,524,315 10.239001
10
2020 30 2019 30

11
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2020 30 2019 30
2020 30 2019 30
15
15
2020 30 2019 30
2020 30 2019 30
40.41 39.82
5.62
2020 30 2019 30
2020 30 2019 30
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2020 30
36,602,495 1,578 36,604,073
1,180,962,108 1,180,962,108
23,225,539 23,225,539
11,202,327 11,202,327
36,602,495 1,215,391,552 1,251,994,047
20,232,168 20,232,168
16,374,500 16,374,500
18,524,955 18,524,955
55,131,623 55,131,623
2019 30

25,328,255 4,064 25,332,319

1,179,655,412 1,179,655,412

563,016 563,016
31,277,290 31,277,290
25,328,255 1,211,499,782 1,236,828,037

1,689,723 1,689,723

27,549,965 27,549,965
5,789,720 5,789,720

35,029,408 35,029,408
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2020 30
885,644,713 86,170,416 147,364,050 47,528,169 1,166,707,348
885,644,713 86,170,416 147,364,050 47,528,169 1,166,707,348
1,254,353 1,254,353
1,254,353 1,254,353
2019 30

741,458,584 253,187,218 110,036,929 32,213,538 1,136,896,269

741,458,584 253,187,218 110,036,929 32,213,538 1,136,896,269

114,343,057 114,343,057

114,343,057 114,343,057
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10

2020 30 2020 30 2019 30 2019 30
4.1 “.1) 4.5 4.5 )
1.9 1.9 ) 2.3 2.3 )
0.4 0.4 ) 0.4 0.4 )
0.4 0.4 ) 0.3 0.3 )
0.6 0.6 ) 0.9 0.9 )
2.6 (2.6 ) 1.6 1.6 )
10.0 (10.0 ) 10.0 (10.0 )
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2020 30 2019 30
2020 30

1,696,574,107 1,713,626,530
2019 30

579,210,599 580,272,663
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(c

2020

30

2019

30
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2020 30 2019 30
36,604,073 25,332,319
8,300,000 3,630,000
3,179,745 627,659
23,225,539 563,016
971 7,691
2,901,356 27,639,599
74,211,684 57,800,284
2020 30 2019 30
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
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2020 30 2019 30
0.96 1.76
58.34 65.88
10.18 14.68
1.19 3.75
0.21
29.12 13.93
100.00 100.00
2020 30 2019 30

2020 30 2019 30

12
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30

2019

30
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8.60

8.14

6.92

5.45

7.53

5.30

6.06

6.03

8.10

5.43



12

2020

30

100

2019

30
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2020 30 2019 30
o 16,993,373 1.42 7,224,686 0.60
o 105,092 0.01
o 2,510,657 0.21
® 1,578 0.00( 4,064 0.00
© 16,993,373 1.42 47,087 0.00(
o 18,056,482 1.51
36,604,073 3.06 25,332,319 2.11
®
840,000 0.07
3,660,000 0.31
1,180,000 0.10
780,000 0.06
4,300,000 0.36
340,000 0.03
830,000 0.07
8,300,000 0.70 3,630,000 0.30
)
@
®
©) 0.005
2020 30 2019 30
© 620,000 0.05
620,000 0.05
®
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30

2019

30

75.638631

0.716750

72.891186

0.674450

14

15

16

17

18

19

2020

2020

2020 30

30 2019

30

2020 12 29

2019

30

30

CovID-19
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2020 30
7,377,740 1,177,782,363 98.41
1,177,782,363 98.41
01/10/2020 USD 288,240  AUD 405,099 Standard Chartered Bank (2,950) (0.00)

(2,950)  (0.00)

Australia and New Zealand

01/10/2020  AUD 4,421,318 USD 3,145,735 poin o aroup Ltd 32,431 0.00
01/10/2020 AUD 8,100,814 USD 5,698,756 Morgan Stanley & Co 149,987 0.01
01/10/2020 AUD 244,090,763 USD 174,036,714 BNP Paribas SA 1,277,071 0.11
01/10/2020 AUD 254,424,653 USD 181,455,930 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 1,259,769 0.12
09/10/2020  AUD 26,359,275 JPY 1,980,745,581 HSBC Bank PLC 170,552 0.01
09/10/2020  AUD 28,530,928 JPY 2,144,383,684 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 187,640 0.01
21/12/2020  AUD 2,432,287 USD 1,731,000 Standard Chartered Bank 17,758 0.00
09/10/2020  JPY 78,056,815 AUD 1,027,712 Morgan Stanley & Co 4,327 0.00
01/10/2020  USD 461,000 AUD 634,313 /nggﬁ;ig ; Oj;stdNeW Zealand 8,868 0.00
01/10/2020  USD 1,507,169 AUD 2,068,945 HSBC Bank PLC 33,838 0.00
01/10/2020 USD 2,334,000 AUD 3,218,862 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 37,504 0.00

3,179,745 0.26
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01/1072020  AUD 412,632 USD 300,788 UBS AG (7,023)  (0.00)
01/10/2020 AUD 984,316 USD 709,000 Royal Bank of Canada (4,871) (0.00)
09/10/2020  AUD 122,665 JPY 9,497,918 Morgan Stanley & Co (2,913)  (0.00)
09/10/2020  AUD 123,790  JPY 9,418,746 ggﬁgﬁéigmﬂgdugew Zealand (741)  (0.00)
09/10/2020  AUD 243,413 JPY 18,687,936 Citibank NA (3,673)  (0.00)
09/10/2020 JPY  2,042,297,814 AUD 27,415,381 gg‘j‘te Street Bank & Trust 15 g36y  (0.03)
09/10/2020 JPY  2,042,207,815 AUD 27,415,969 Standard Chartered Bank (413,425)  (0.04)
23/12/2020 JPY  1,980,745,581 AUD 26,370,210 gg‘j‘te Street Bank & Trust (56 411y (0.01)
23/12/2020 JPY  1,980,745,581 AUD 26,376,011 HSBC Bank PLC (162,212)  (0.01)
01/10/2020 USD 180,256,465 AUD 260,027,791 Morgan Stanley & Co (8,536,385)  (0.71)
01/10/2020 USD 180,788,895 AUD 260,118,572 BNP Paribas SA (7,884,327)  (0.66)
21/12/2020  USD 174,036,714 AUD 244,131,851 ﬁg‘f‘te Street Bank & Trust ., a5 350y (0.12)
21/12/2020 USD 174,036,714 AUD 244,031,552 BNP Paribas SA (1,272,051)  (0.11)
(20,229,218)  (1.69)
1,177,782,363  98.41
(2,950)  (0.00)
3,179,745 0.26
(20,229,218)  (1.69)
36,132,484 3.02
1,196,862,424  100.00
AUD
JpY
UsD
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2019 30
7,338,652 1,179,027,753  98.11
1,179,027,753  98.11
01/10/2019  AUD 12,476 USD 8,423 HSBC Bank PLC (12)  (0.00)
01/10/2019  AUD 9,390,890 USD  6,341,g09 ‘ustralia &  New Zealand )5 h1py (0 00)

Banking Group Ltd
02/10/2019 AUD 2,052,714  USD 1,387,130 Standard Chartered Bank (3,969) (0.00)

Australia & New Zealand (332) (0.00)

01/10/2019  JPY 9,514,765  AUD 130,866 ganking Group Ltd

(16,357)  (0.00)

14/11/2019 AUD 133,107  JPY 9,664,080 Standard Chartered Bank 333 0.00
14/11/2019  JPY 54,281,000 AUD 735,844 Standard Chartered Bank 9,914 0.00
13/11/2019 USD 4,955,631 AUD 7,306,347 Standard Chartered Bank 30,339 0.01
13/11/2019 USD 7,143,695  AUD 10,472,066 UBS AG 103,994 0.01
13/11/2019 USD 150,226,024 AUD 222,234,800 HSBC Bank PLC 171,037 0.01

Australia & New Zealand

13/11/2019 USD 171,453,435 AUD 253,520,442 Banking Group Ltd

312,042 0.02

627,659 0.05
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Australia & New Zealand

13/11/2019 AUD 1,493,554 USD 1,012,477 Banking Group Ltd (5,393) (0.00)
13/11/2019 AUD 2,620,113 USD 1,801,000 Standard Chartered Bank (46,222) (0.00)
Australia & New Zealand

14/11/2019 AUD 352,136  JPY 25,979,000 Banking Group Ltd (4,786) (0.00)

14/11/2019 JPY 2,435,785,037 AUD 34,273,089 Westpac Corp (808,213) (0.07)

14/11/2019  JPY 2,456,210,416 AUD 34,554,249 Citibank NA (808,752) (0.07)

(1,673,366) (0.1%)

1,179,027,753 98.11

(16,357) (0.00)

627,659 0.05

(1,673,366) (0.14)

23,832,940 1.98

1,201,798,629 100.00
AUD
JPY
usb
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Statements of Financial Position
As at 30 September 2020

Motes  30-Sep-2020  30-Sep-2019

AUD AUD
Assets
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3ic) 4 1,180 962108 1179655412
Interest receivable 3ib) a7 7631
Due from brokers:

Collateral amourts 3e) 8,300,000 3,630,000
Receivable for investments sold 2 23,225,539 563016
Receivable for Units subscribed gy 8 2801, 358 27,639 5859
Cash and cash equivalents 3(d), 12 36,604 073 25332319
Total Assets 1,251,994,047  1,236,828,037
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 3e), 4 20,232 168 1,689 723
Due to brokers:

Collateral amounts 3e) —_ 520,000
Payable for investments purchased 2 16,374,500 27,549 965
Payable for Units redeemed 3{g) 8 9,565,530 565,740
Imvesiment management fees payable T (a) 5,149,258 2129269
Distribution fees payable 7 () 3,278,070 2043354
Manager fees payable Fl (2] 157,120 134,225
Administration and transfer agent fees payable Tic) a8 287 14,356
Agent company fees payable il (5)] 96,561 TIT23
Trustee fees payable T (e 66,741 16,760
Audit fees payable 57,098 57,333
Legal fees payable 33,031 83,720
Custodian service fees payable Tif 20,695 27,449
Interest payable 3b) — 18532
Miscellaneous fees payable 1,557 B49
Total Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Units) 565,131,623 36,028,408
Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable

Participating Units 1,196,862,424  1,201,798,629
Thie sccompanying notas form an integral part of the finsncal siEmants. 10
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

Income
Interest incorme

Met realized gainf{loss) on finandial assets and financial

liabiliies at fair value through profit or loss on:
Investments
Fareign currency

Met change in unrealized gaindloss) on financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss onc

Imvestme nts
Fareign currency
Met Income/(Loss)

Operating Expenses

Imvestment management fees

Distribution fees

Administration and fransfer agent fees

Manager fees

Agent company fees

Trustee fees

Legal fees

Custodian senvice fees

Interest expense

Audit fees

Miscellaneous expense

Total Operating Expenses

Met Income/{Loss) from Operations

Finance Costs:

Distributions to participating Unitholders

Change in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units from Operations

The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments.

144/286

Motes 30-Sep-2020 30-Sep-2019

AUD AUD

3 (b 119,825 105,879

18,853,492 27,824 485

(7,935,420 31,191,596

(34,124,800) 10,370,321

{16,011.761) {3,535.410)

{39,088 ,564) 55,956,851

7 (&) 10,504,440 5,440 645

7 (d) 10,504 440 5,447 197

7c) 719,010 264,433

7 {b) 661,610 345,455

7 g 393916 205,083

Tie 188,252 B2 609

163,009 255,227

7 (M 158,018 118,679

3(b) 101,802 58,159

58,388 50,548

3,928 3815

23,456,913 12,270,831

(62,555,477) 53,685,920

3(h), 10 62,109,791 30,387 558

{124,665 268) 23,298,362

L
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Statermments of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

Motes 30-Sep-2020 30-Sep-2018
AUD AUD

Met Assets Aftributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Units at Beginning of Year 1,201,798,629 408,271,762

Total Proceeds from redeemable participating Units issued B 434 327 251 853,081,310
Total Payments for redeemable paricipating Units redeemed g (314 598,188) (92 852 803)
Change in net assets attnbutable to holders of redeemabie

participating Lnits from cperations (124 665 268) 23,298 352
Met Assats Attributable to Holders of Redeemable

Participating Units at Year End 1,196,862,424  1,201,788,628
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smlements. 12
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Statements of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating Linits from operations
Adjustment for:
Exchange gains/{losses) on cash
Distributions o particapating Unithalders
Interest income
Interest expense
Total
Met (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets:
Due from brokers:
Collateral amourts
Receivable for investments sold
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Met Increasel/(Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Due to brokers:
Colateral amounts
Payable for investments purchased
Investment management fees payable
Digtribution fees payable
Administration and transfer agent fees payable
Trustee fees payable
Manager fees payable
Agent company fees payable
Miscellaneous fees payable
Audit fees payable
Custodian service fees payable
Legal fees payable
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Cash Provided byf{Used in) Operating Activities
Interest received
Interest paid
Met Cash Provided byf{Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds received from redeemable participating Units issued
Payments for redeemable padicipating Units redgeemed
Distributions o particapating Unithalders

Met Cash Provided by{Used in) Financing Activities
Exchange gains/{losses) on cash

Met increase/{decrease) in cash

Cash and cash equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and cash equivalents at End of Year

The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments.

Notes

3(h), 10

3
2

3 (e)
2

7 {a)
7d)
7iE
71
7o)
71g)

7o
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30-Sep-2020 30-Sep-2019
AUD AUD
(124,665,268) 23,208,362
21,401 (2,198
£2,109,791 30,387 558
(119,925) (105,879)
101,802 59,159
(62,552,099) 53,637,002
(4,670,000) (2,884,000)
(22,662.523) (563,016)
(1,306,696)  (776,676.173)
(620,000) (2,417,223)
{11,175, 465) 14 BET 954
3,019,989 1,417,509
1,235,706 1,337,318
83,931 {12,741)
49,981 7,340
22 895 89,821
18,838 50,944
708 %]
(237) 4142
(6.754) 8817
{50,688) 24,423
18,542 445 1,967,707
(80,069,870) __ (710,009,327)
126,645 08,188
{120,834) {45,260)
(80,064,159) (709,956,339)
450,065, 494 849,159,707
(305,598,389) (82,905, 189)
{62,109.791) (30,387 558)
91,357,314 725,866,960
(21.401) 2,198
11,271,754 15.612,759
25332319 9.419 560
36,604,073 25,332,319
13
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Meotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

Organization

G5 Australia Hybrid Securities Fund (the "Sub-Trust) is a sub-trust of the MUGC GS Cayman Fund {the "Trust™).
The Trust i an open-ended exempted umbrella unit trust established by a trust deed under the Trusts Law (2011
Revision) of the Cayman [slands dated 10 February 2010 {as supplemented or amended from time to time, the “Trust
Dead”) executed by Brown Brothers Harmman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee”) and Mitsubishi LIFJ
Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) S A, (the "Manager”), The Trust is regulated under the Mutual Funds Lar
(Revised),

Goldman Sachs Asset Management Intemational ("GSAMIT), a related party to the Sub-Trust, serves as Investment
Manager pursuant 1o an investment management agreement [Management Agreement’) with the Sub-Trust
The Imvestment Manager is responsible for overseeing and monitoring the day.-fo-day operations of the Sub-Trust's
affairs regarding their nvestments.

The Investment Manager has appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Management (Singapore) Pie. Lid. ("GS Singapare”)
and ama Funds Management Limited ("Yarra”), each a related party of the Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. ("Gaoldman
Sachs”) as Investment Advesors pursuant 1o a Master Infercompany Sub-Advisary Agreement and a Master
Intercompany Sub-Advisory and Participating Affiliate Services Agreement, respectively {collectively, the “Investment
Advisory Agreements’). Under the Investment Advisory Agreements, GS Singapone and Yarra provide the Sub-Trust
with continuous professional investment advice, and effects and manages all transactions on behalf of the Sub.Trust
As compensation for services rendered under the Investment Advisory Agresments, G5 Singapore and Yarra receive
afee

The Sub-Trust commenced operations and launched Uinit classes on the following dates:

- Class of Units Commencemaent Dates
Class ALID 26 Seplember 2012
Ciass JPY (Hedged) 26 Seplembar 2012
Class USD 26 September 2012
Class USO (Heaged) 28 March 2018

The financial stalements are presented in AUD (“Australian Dollar®), the Sub-Trust's funchonal and presentation
currency. The Investment Manager considers that this currency most accurately represents the economic effects of the
undetlying transactions, events and conditions of the Sub-Trust

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Sub-Trust, (the “Feeder Fund”) is to seek (o provide Unitholders with a long-term total
return consisting of income and capial gains primanly by investing in subordinated term debt securities, perpetual
subordinated debt securites, preferred securities and senior debt securities ssued in Australan Dollars thraugh
imeestment into the Australia Enhanced Income Fund Il (the “Master Fund®). In relaton to such securities, subordinated
termdebtsecurities, perpetual subordinated debt securites and preferred securities are collectively refered toas “Hybred
Securities”, Due to this imvestment cbhjective, investors are subject to certain unique risks. The Sub-Trust's investments
in gther funds ane Subject o the tems and condibons of the respective investee fund's Offerng Memarandum,

The invesiment abjective of the Master Fund is to seek to primarily invest its assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents)
in a diversified portfolic consisting mainly of Hybrid Securities and senior debt seacurities issued in Australian Dellars.
The Master Fund may invest in securities issued in other cumencies, and also may invest in fived, variable or floating
rales securities.

The irvestrment managers of the Master Fund and the Feedar Fund are the same

The Master Fund may engage in transactions in financial dervative nstruments as part of its general investmeant
policy, including without limitaton, total retum swaps, index futures, contracts for differences, forward foreign currency
coniracts and options.

The Master Fund may utiize transachons in equity index futures, bank il futures, government bond fulures, of common
stocks, primaridy by short selling, in crder to hedge certain exposures,
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

2, Investment Objective (continued)

There can be no assurance that the Sub-Trust's investments will be successful or that the investment objective of the
Master Fund will be achieved or that its portiobo design, risk monitoning and hedgong strategies will be successhul

The significant accounting policies of the Master Fund and the Feader Fund are consistent.

As at 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2019, the Feeder Fund hotds 100% of the Master Fund's net assets.
The Master Fund i3 a sub-fund of Goldman Sachs Insttutional Funds ple (the "Company”), an investment comgany
with vanable cap#al incorporated with limited liability i Ireland with registered number 307105 and established as an
umibrella fund with segregated liabdity between subdunds.

The Feeder Fund invests into the Master Fund. Total subscriptions and redemptions made by the Feeder Fund into the
Master Fund during the year ended 30 September 2020 were ALID 738,754,271 and AUD 724,738,351, respectively,
As at 30 September 2020, there were no capital commitment obligations and the Sub-Trust had AUD 16,367 857 due
to the Master Fund for unsettled purchases and ALUD 23,225 539 due from the Master Fund for unsettied sales. Total
subscriptions and redemplions made by the Feeder Fund into the Master Fund during the year ended 30 September
2019 were AUD 917 500920 and AUD 175,880, 631, respectively. As at 30 September 2019, there were no capital
commitment obligations and the Sub-Trust had AUD 27,548 787 due to the Master Fund for unsattled purchases and
AUD 553,016 due from the Master Fund for unsettled sakes.

The Fesder Fund invests into the Master Fund by purchasing the Master Fund's redesmable participating shares.
The Master Fund aliows redemptions of these shares on any business day.

Movements in the fair value of the Master Fund's pertfolio and corresponding movements in the fakr value of the Master
Fund may expose the Feeder Fund to a loss.

3, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{a) Financial Statements
Basziz of Preparation of Financial Slalements

The preparation of the financial statements is in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS"),
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets and kablilities (nchuding dervative instruments) at far value through profit or loss. The preparation of
the financial statements requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that may affect the amounts
reparted in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ fram those estimates.

i Hew standards, amendments and interpretations effective for annual perieds beginning on or after 1
January 2019 and were effective or applicable to the Sub-Trust

Ca 7 June 2017, the Intermatonal Accounting Standards Board ("IASE" of the “Board™) issued IFRIC Interpretation 23
— Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (the “Interpretation”). The Interpretation clarifies application of recognition
and measuremant requiremants in 145 12 Income Taxes when there is uncerdainty over ncome tax treatments. The
Interpretation is effectve for annual reporting peniods beginning an or after 1 January 2019, but certain transition reliefs
are available. Based on the Sub-Trust's assessment, this new standard does not have a significant impact on the
financial statements of the Sub-Trust or performance.

There are no other new standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective that
would be expected 1o have a signilicant impest on the Sub-Trust,

ii. Mew standards, amendments and interpretations issued but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Sub-Trust

There are na new standards, amendments and interprefations to existing standards that have been adopted by the
Sub-Trust
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Maotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
[1:1] Investment Transactions, Related Investment Income and Operating Expenses

The Sub-Trust records its investment transactions on a trade date basis Realzed gains and losses are basad on
the First In First Qut ("FIFQY) method, Dividend income and dividend expense are recorded on the ex-dividend date
and interest and interest expense are accrued over the life of the investment Cverdraft expenses which are accrued
as incurred, if any, are mncluded in interest expense, Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit of loss
includes accretion of market discount, onginal issue discounts and amortization of premiums and is recorded into
income over the life of the underlying imvestment. Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and dividend incoma are recognized and presented on a gross basis before withholding tax, if any, in the Staternents
of Comprehensive Income. Interest income includes interest from cash and cash equivalents. Reimbursement of
expenses s represented in the Statements of Comprehensive Income, if any.

Cperating and organizational expenses are recognized on an actrual basis,
Transaction costs, when incurred, ane recognized in the Statements of Comprehensive Income,

The Sub-Trust wil also bear its offering and crganizational expenses and the initial and ongoing expenses incurred
in connectian with the offer and sale of Units, including printing costs, marketing costs, legal fees, expenses incurred
im connection with the review of subscription agreements and refated documentation and other expenses of the Sub-
Trust, the Manager, the Trustee, the Investiment Manager, the Global Distributor and the Administrator. The offering
and organizational expenses of the Sub-Trust, it any, are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the
years endad 20 Septembar 2020 and 20 Seplamber 2018, respectively.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar nghts are not the dominant factor in
decding who contrals the entity, such as when any voling rights relate to adminstrative tasks only and the relevant
activitbes are directed by means of contractual arrangements. A structured entity often has some or all of the following
features or attributes; (a) restricted activities, (b) a narrow and well-defined objective, such as to provide investment
ocpportunities for investors by passing on risks and rewards associated with the assets of the structured entity to
imeestors, () insufficient equity to permit the structured entity to finance its activities without subordenated financial
suppart and [d) inancing in the ferm of multiple contractualy linked instruments to investars that create concentrations
of credit or other risks (tranches).

The Master Fund finances their operations by issuing redeemable shares which are puttable at the holder's option and
entiles the holder to a proportional stake in the respective Sub-Trust's net assets. The Sub-Trust holds redeemakble
shares in its Master Fund,

The Sub-Teust's maxirmum exposure to loss from its interests in the Master Fund is egual to the total fair value of its
imvestments in the Master Fund.

Once the Sub-Trust has dsposed of its shares in the Master Fund the Sub-Trust ceases to be exposed to any risk from
that Master Fund.

As at 30 September 2020 and 30 Septernber 2018, the net asset value of the Master Fund was ALID 1,177,782,383
and AUD 1,172,027, 753, respectively,

) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
i Clasaificalion

The Sub-Trust classfes its investrments based on bath the Sub-Trust's business model for managing those financial
assets and the contractual cash fiow characteristics of the financial assets. The porticlio of financial assets is managed
and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Sub-Trust is primarily focused on fair value information and
uses that information to assess the assets' performance and to make decisions. The Sub-Trust has not taken the option
to irrevacably designate any equity securities as fair value through other comprehensive income. The contractual cash
florws of the Sub-Trust's debt securities are solely principal and interest, however, these securities are neither held
for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows nor held both for coecting contractual cash flows and for sale.
The collection of contractual cash flows s only incidental to achleving the Sub-Trust's business model's objective.
Consequently, all investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Maotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss {continued)
W Recognition and Derecognition

The Sub-Trust recognizes financial assels and financial liabilties on the date it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the investrment. Purchases and sales of financial assets and financial Eabilties are recognized using trade
date accounting. From trade date, any gains and losses arnsing from changes in fair value of the financial assets or
financial iabdiies are recorded i the Statements of Comprehensive Incorme.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Sub.
Trust has transtered substantally all risks and rewards of ownership.

i Fair Valwe Measurement Principles

IFRS 9, published i July 2014, has replaced previcus guidance in |AS 39 and includes revised guidance on the
classification and measurement of financial instruments. EMective for reporting penods beginning on or after 1 January
2015 it carnies forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instrumenits from 143 39,

Under IFRS 8, dassification and measurament of debt assets will be driven by the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. A debt instrument is measured
at amortized cost if the objective of the business medel is to hold the financials asset for the collection of the contractual
cash flows and the contractual cash fiows under the instrument solely represents payments of pancipal and interest
{"SPPI7)

A debt instrument is measured at fair vakee through comprehensve income if the objectve of the business model is
to hodd the financial asset both to collect contractual cash flows fram SPPI and to sell. All other debt instruments must
b recognized at fair valse through profit or loss. An entity may however, at inital recognition, irevecably designate
a fmancial asset as measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurament or recegnition inconsistency.

Derivative and equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit or koss unless, for equity instruments not
held for trading, an irrevocable option & taken to measure at fair value throwgh other comprehensive income.

Under IFRS 9 the Sub-Trust's investment portfolio continues to be intially recorded at their transaction price and then
measured at fair value subsequent to initial recognition. Gains and losses anising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets or financial @bilities at fair value through proft or loss” category are presented in the Statements of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arisa

Financial assets classified as recerabies are camied at amortized cost, f any. Financial kabidfties, cther than those
at fair vaiuwe through profit or loss, are maasured at amortized cost Financial liabilites arising from redeemable Linits

issued by the Sulb-Trust are camied at the redemplion amount representing the Unithclders’ nght to a residual amaunt
of the Sub-Trust's Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeermnable Participating Units ("Met Assets®).

The fair value of all securities and demvatives is determined according to the followng policies

(it) Debl Securites

Debt securites, comprising corporate debt, are valued on the basis of dealer supplied quatations of by using a third
party pricing service. Yhen a debt security has been identified as being in default, the interest accrual on the defaulted
securnty may be stopped and, upon confirmation from relevant parties, the amount recenvable may be witten off.

(2} Exchange Listed Assels and Liabities

The fair value of exchange traded financial investments, comprising common stock and short-term investments, is
based upon quoted market prices at the year end date without any deduction for estimated future transacton costs.

(i3 Monay Markef Invesfments

Money market investrments ane valued at amartized cost, which appraximates fair valee,
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Maotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss {continued)
i Fair Value Measurement Principles (condinued)

{id) Shares in Coliective Imvesimen! Schemes

The fair value of investments in open-ended investment funds, including collectvwe investment schemes, is basad
upon the official published Met Assat Value ("NAV") per share as suppled by the administrative agent of the funds in
accordance with valuation palicy of applicable funds as outlined in the respective Offering Memorandum.

(i) Derivalives

A derivative is an instrument whose fair value is derived from an underlying instrument, index reference rate or a
combination of these factors. Derivative instruments may be privately negotiated contracts which are often referred to
% over the counter (OTCT) dervatves or they may be listed and traded on an exchange. Dervative contracts may
imvolve future commiiments to purchase or sell financial mstruments or commaodities at specified terms cn a specified
date, of to exchange interest payment sireams of curencies based on a nolional of contractual amaount

Darnvative contracts are stated at fair value and recognized as financial assets and financial liabilities on the Staternents
of Financial Postion, Gains and losses resulling from the change = the fair value are reflected on the Staterments of
Comprehensive Income as a companent of change in wnrealized gainfiless), Realized gains or losses are recorded on
termination or from periadic cash flow payments.

(HifSa)  Forward Foreign Currency Contracls

In @ forward forelgn currency contract, the Sub-Trust agrees 1o receive of deliver a Toied quantity of one currency far
anather, at a pre-determined price at a future date. Purchases and sales of forward foreign currency contracts having
the same notional value, settliement date, counterparty and right to settle net are generaly offset (which result in a net
foreign currency position of zeno with the counterparty) and any realized gains or losses are recognized on trade date.

Forward feceign currency contracts are valued at mid by third party pricing service providers.

(i) All Securifies and Derfvatives

If & quaoted market price is not available from a third party pricing senvice or a dealer, or @ quotation is believed
to be matenally inaccurate, the fair value of the investment is determened by using valuaton techniques. Valuation
techniques include the use of recent market fransactions, reference fo the cwrrent fair valuwe of another investment that
% substanhally the same, discounted cash flow analyses or any ather techreques that provides a reliable estimate of
prices obtained in actual market transactons,

Such securities and derivatives shall be valued at their probable realzation value as determined by a Valuer. The
‘aluer during the years ended 30 Septernber 2020 and 30 September 2019 was Gokiman Sachs & Co, LLC and the
valuation function was pedormed by Goldman Sachs Consumer and Investment Management Division Controllers
{SIMD Controllers),

The irmvestments have been valued in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles that require the use
of certain estimates and assumptions. Although these estimates and assumpbons are based on the best available
information, actual results could be matenally different from these estimates.

There were no secunties where the Values was used 1o determine fair value during the years ended 30 September 2020
and 30 September 2019,

v Transfers bahween levels of the fair value hierarchy

Transfers beteween levels of the fair value heerarchy, if any, are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the
reparting period
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
{d} Cash and Cash BEquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents {short term, highly bquid investments that are readily converbble to knosm amounts of cash
and which are subject to an inggnificant nsk of changes n valug), including time deposts and certificates of deposa,
are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Certificates of daposit and time deposits are reclassied from financial assets at fair vabue through profit or loss to cash
and cash equivalents as they are short term, highly liquid, readily convertible to known ameounts of cash and subject to
an msignificant risk of changes in value

Talal Cath
Cash and Cash
Cash Equivalents Equivalents

AUD AUD AUD
30-5ep-2020 1578 36502495 36,604,073
A0-Sep-2019 4054 25,338,255 25,352,319

fe) Due framfto Brokers

Due fromito brokers consists primaridy of cash collateral {for derivative contracts) and margin amounts receivable from!
payable o the Sub-Trust's clearing brokers and vanous counterparties, Collateral amounts due from'to broker balances
are valued at cost. The amounts receivable from and payable to brokers represents cash settled in the Sub-Trust's
braker accounts. These balances are related 1o cash heid as collateral or margin on Swaps and futunes with cleanng
counterparties, futures margin cash receivablafpayable to the Sub-Trust's futures clearing merchants, and centrally
cleared swaps margin cash receivable/payable to the Sub-Trust's centrally cleared swaps cleaning merchants.

These amounts are recognized initially at fair value and subsegquently measured at amortized cost. The Sub-Trust's
due from brokers balances are subject to the expected credit loss model within IFRS 9. No balances are considered
imgaired and no amounts have been witlen off in the period

Coflateral amournts and margin amounts included in due fromfto brokers are disclosed in the Staterments of Financial
Position as at 30 September 2020 and 30 Septernber 2018, respectively,

if Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in foredgn currencies are translated at the foreign currency exchange rate in effect at the date of the
transaction. Assets and labiktes of the Sub-Trust denominated in foreign currencies are transiated into the functional
currency of the Sub-Trust at the foreign currency exchange rate in effect at the year end date.

Foreign currency exchange diferences aresing on translation and realized gains and losses on disposals or settfernents.
of assets and liabilibes are recognized in the Statements of Comprehensive Income. Foreign culrency exchange gains
of lossas relating fo investments at fair value through profit or loss and all ather foreign currency exchange gains of
losses relating to monetary items, including cash, are reflected in the net realized gainfiless) on investments or net
change in unrealized gainf{loss) on investments in the Statements of Comprehensive income.

(g} Redeemable Units
Al redeemable participating Units issued by the Sub-Trust provides the Unithalders with the right to redeem for cash at
the value proportionate to the Unithoéder's share in the Sub-Trust's net assets an the redemption date. In accordance
with 1AS 32 “Frnancial Instruments. Presentabien”, such Units have been clagsified as a financal liabifity at the value of
the redemption amount in the Statements of Financial Position. The Sub-Trust is contractually obliged to redeem Units
in accordance with the Offering Memorandum

{h) Distributions Payable to Holders of Redeemable Units

Distibutions/Dividends payable on the redeemable participating Units are recognized in the Statements of
Comprehensive Income as Finance Costs,
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under the amendment to IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement™ are described
Ehoney

Lewel 1 — Unadjusted guoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricted assets or kabilties,

Lewvel 2 — Quoted prces in markets that are not active of inancial instruments for which significant inputs are observable
{including but not limited to quoted prices for simlar securities, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilty and credit
spreads), ether directly or indwectly. T his may include the Valuer's assumphons in determining fair value measurement,

Lewel 3 — Prices or valuations that require significant uncbservable inputs (including the Valuer's assumptions in
determining fair value measurement)

The bevel in the fair value hserarchy within which the fair value measurement is categonzed in its entirety shall be
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in #s entirety. For
this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair
value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobsanvable inputs, that
measurement is a Level 3 measurement Assessing the signficance of a particular imput to the fair value measurement
im its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

As at 30 September 2020 and 20 September 2019, the Ninancial assets at fair value through profit or loss of the Sub-
Trust contain investments in underlying funds that have been fair valued in accordance with the policies sat out above.
The shares of the underlying funds are not publicly traded, redemptions can only be made by the Sub-Trust on the
redemption dates and are subject to the required notice periods specified in the Ofering Memorandum. As a result, the
carnying value of undedying funds may not be indicatve of the value ultimately realized on redemplion

The fair value of the investments in the underlying funds is primarily based on the latest available redemption price
as reported by the adminstrator of the underdying funds. The Sub-Trust may make adustments (o the value based on
consikderations such as; liquidity of the Sub-Trust's holding in the underlying funds or their undedying investmeants, the
value date of the NAV provided and any restictions on redemptions.

The following tables show financial assets and financial labatties recognized at fair value, analyzed between the three
levels described previously:

Financlal Assets measured at falr value
I0-Sep-2020
Fair walue measurement at 30-Sep-2020
__Lewsl 1 AUD Level 2 AUD Level 3 ALD Totad ALICH

Financial assets at fair value through prolit or loss

Inwestiment Fund 1177, 782,363 -— -— 1177782363
Forward Foreign Cumency Contracls — 1479745 — IATRT45
Tedal 1177 782 353 3ATETAS — 1180 667 108

Financial Liabilities measured at falr value
0-Sep-20H0
Fair value measuremem at 30-Sep-2020

__Lewel 1 AUD Level 2AUD Level 3AUD Tetal ALIC
Financial liabilRies at fair value through proft or loss

Foraand Foreign Cumency Conlracls -_— 20,232,168 -_— 20,232,168
Todal — FIreFRL] —
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

Financial Assels measured af fair value

30-Sep-2019
Fair value measunement at N-EEP-?U'I'B
Lewel 1 AUD Lewel 2AUD Level 3AUD Total AUDY
Financial assels at fair value through profit o loss
Irvestrent Fund 1,179,027,753 - — 1179027753
Forward Forsign Cumency Conlracts - 827558 - 827 558
Total 1179027753 [FEEES] — 1179655412

Finamncial Liabilithes measured at falr value

J0-Sep-2013
Fair value mieasunermen at 30-Sep-2019

_ _ —Level AUD  _ Level2AUD | _ Level3AUD  __ TolalAUD

Financial liabilies al Tar value through proft of loss
Forward Foreign Cumency Conlracls = 1689723 = 1,689 723
Tolal —_ 1,689,723 _ 1,689,723

Dwring the years ended 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2019, there wede no transfers beteeen Level 1, Level 2
and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and financial liabilibes which were recorded at fair value,

There were no securities leveled at Leved 3 at 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2019

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities not carried at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed

Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdraft, if any, are classified as Level 1. All other assets and liabilites nat
measured at fair value but for which faxr value is disclosed are classified as Level 2. Refer to the Statements of Financial
Position for a breakdown of assets and liabilties and to Note 3{c) for a description of the valuation techniques

The puttable value of redeemable participating Units classified as a financial liability is calculated based on the net
difference betwesn total assets and all other liabilbes of the Sub-Trust in accordance with the Sub-Trust's Offering
Memorandum. These Units are not traded on an active market. A demand feature s attached to these Units, as they
afe redeernable at the holders' opbion and can be put back to the Sub-Trust at any dealing date for cash equal to
proportionate Units of the Sub-Trust's NAV attributable to the Units class. The fair value is basad on the amount payabie
on demand, discountad from the first date that the amount could be required to ke paid. The impadt of discounting
im this instance is not material. As such, Level 2 is deemed to be the most appropriate categorization for Met Assets
Attributable to halders of redeemable parbcipating LUnits.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Derivafives

In arger to better define its contractual rights and to secure rights that will help the Sub-Trust mitigate its counterparty
risk, the Sub-Trust may enter into an International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. Master Agreement [“ISDA
Master Agreement”) or similar agreements with its derivatrve contract counterparties, An 1SDA Master Agresmeant
s a bilateral agreement betwean the Sub-Trust and a counterparty that governs OTC derivatives, including foraign
exchange contracts, and typically contains, among ather things, coltateral pasting terres and netting provisions in the
event of a default andlor termination event The provisions of the 1S0A Master Agreement typically permit a single
net payment in the event of a default (close-out netting) or similar event, including the bankruptey or insolvency of the
counterparty.

Collateral and margm requerernents difer between exchange traded dervatives and OTC dervatves Margn
requirements are estabkshed by the broker or clearing house for exchange-traded and centrally cleared dervatives
{fin@ncial futures contracts, options and centrally cleared swaps) pursuant to the governing agreements for those
instrument types. Brokers can ask for margin in excess of the minimum in certain creumstances. Collateral terms are
confract-specific for OTC dervatives (foreign currency exchange contracts, options and certain swaps). For dervatives
traded under an 1SDA Master Agreement, the collateral requirements are typically calculated by netting the mark-to-
markel amount for each transacton under such agreament and companng that amount 1o the value of any collateral
currently pledged by the Sub-Trust and the counterparty. Additionally, the Sub-Trust may be required to post additional
coliateral to the counterparty i the form of intial margin, the terms of which would be outlined in the confirmation of
the OTC transaction.
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities {continued)
Derivatives (continued)

For financial reporting purposes, cash collateral that has been pledged to cover obligations of the Sub-Trust and cash
coltateral recerved from the counterparty, o any, 1S reported separately on the Statements of Financml Position as dueg
fromidue to broker. Non-cash collateral pledged by the Sub-Trust, if any, is noted in the Schedules of Investments.
Generally, the amount of collateral due from o 10 a counterparty must exceed a minimum transfer amount threshold
before a transfer is required to be made. To the extent amounts due to the Sub-Trust from its counterparties are naot
fully collateralized, contractually or othenwise, the Sub-Trust bears the nsk of loss from counterparty nonperonmance,
The Sub-Trust attempts to mitigate counterparty risk by only entering into agreements with counterparties that & believes
to be of good standing and by menitoring the financial stability of those counterparties.

Additionally, the netting of assets and liabilities and the offsettng of collateral pledged or received are based on
confraciual netling/sel-off provisions in the |S0DA Master Agreement or samilar agresments. However, in the event of a
default or insahvency of a counterparty, a court could determine that such rights are net enforceable due to restrictions
or prohibitions against the right of setoff that may be imposed due to a particular junsdiction’s bankmuptcy or insohency
laws.

The following tables sat forth the Sub-Trust's net exposure for OTC derivative instruments that are subjact to enforceabls
master netting arrangements of similar agreements at the years ended 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2018,

30-Sep-2020
Disivative Assala™ Diaiirwativi Liabilitiaar™
Mt Derivative  Collabersd
AzEetE [Ruceiwad) Mt
_Counterparty Formands Forwands Liabities]  Plodged™  Amount™
Aurciraha § Hew Doslond Barding
G LI 41,290 [ra] 40,553 - 40558
BNF Panbas 54, 1.3TT.0m 19,058,373 (T.A70.307) 388000 (4.3 H0T)
Ttk HA (3,573 ATy RET3}
HEBC Bank FLC T4, X0 [VEZ,213] 42,173 a2
Wlorpan Sty TH I LEE ] LLE ] 430000 (408 )
Fromyil Bl of Canaa - 1% &T1] AT - (4871}
Slandard Cramensd Bark 17,758 #18,375] | Fae 817y . (A9EBIT)
Siab Shreet Bk & Trost Co 1464013 [1.940,507] | 458 BEg) ] [ EBE B
UES AG (feri]] 0N (e 2]
Total 3 'I!El luﬂyllll E ! & ’I Tl\!ﬂa

T Gress asssunts valabhe for ofsel Bul not natied in the Stalenents of Finencial PosBiorns,
# Het amonnd repragants e el amcnl due (12) frem countieparty in the evecl of & celmll based on ihe coniraciusl Sel-of rights under i aghesment, Mel
arsourd exchuded ey onnpd-colplpralred ascunty

I0-Sep-2013
Dmivvative Azzeta™ Derivative Lisbities™

Mot Derfvative  Collabersd
L1114 1 [Received) Mt
_Counfeparty Forsards Forwards iLIabities) Fledged™  Amount®™
Aurymia £ b Doaland Barking

Grroug LI Ll Lt ] 254N - RANT

Cini PA, - (80,151 (808 TEY) TE0.000 (45 T52)
HEBC Bank PLC 171,037 2] 174,005 . 171025
Slendard Chadered Bark A0, {5 181]) TRB0E) - [t
LB A 103, sl [Leth o] 103w
Witpae: ankang Sorp - [ 13 L= ALY L LFRE] -
Tatal 37,858 {1,848, 72 [0, 067,064 1,568.113 Sbe,148

** Gross amourds avaBable for ofsed bl not netled in the Stalements of Finencial Posiions.
“ Hiet amound represants e net amoonl do (1) fiem counlspety in ihe eveel of & Geled based on ihe contractusl Sel-of rghts under ke agresment. Fal
areoun] sxchudes &y cos-colalenaized ameunts
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

[ Taxation

There are at present no corporation, income, capital gains, profis or other taxes in the Cayman Islands which would
apply to the profits in respect of the Sub-Trust Mor are there gift, estate or inheritance taxes in the Cayman lslands.
The Trustee has applied for and has receved from the Governor-in-Cabinet of the Cayman Islands an undertaking i
accordance with Secton 51 of the Trusts Law (as amended) that for 2 penod of 50 years from the date of the creation
of the Master Trust no law which is thereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any taxes or duty to be levied
on income of on capital assets, gams or apprecmation or any tax in the nature of estate duty or inherdance tax shall
apply to the property comprised in of any income arising under the Sub-Trust o to the Trustee or Unitholders theseaf
in respect of any Such property or income. provided that a Unithalder who is at any time resident or domicsed in the
Cayman Islands (other than any object of a charitable trust or power or an exempted or ordinary non-resident company
mcorporated in the Cayman |slands) shall be liabke in and in respect of such time to all and any tax and duty as if
such undentaking had never been given and nothing in the relevant section of the Trusts Law shall be construed as
exemplting any such person resident or dormiciled in the Isknds fram any law impesing  amy tax or duty referred to in
the Trusts Law

Thie Sub-Trust invests in securiies issued by entities which are domaciled in countries ather than the Cayman Islands.
Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gaing taxes may be applicable to non residents,
such as the Sub-Trust. Typically, these capital gains taxes are reguired to be determined on a seff assessment basis
and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Sub-Trust's brokers on a “withholding” basis.

In accordance with |AS 12 - Income Taxes, the Sub-Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it is probable that
the tax laws of foreign countries requine a tax labilty to be asseseed on the Sub-Trust's capfal gaine sourced from
such foreign eountry, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and circumnstances.

The tax [sbility is then measured at the amount expected to be pard to the relevan taxabion authordies usng the tax
l@wvs and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. There is sometimes
uncertainty about the way enacled tax law is applhed to offshore investment funds. This creates uncerainty about
whather or not a tax ability will ultmately be paid by the Sub-Trust Therefore when measuning any uncertain tax
liabilities management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which could influence
the likelthood of payment, including any farmal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities,

For the years ended 30 Septernber 2020 and 30 September 2018, the Sub-Trust has measured uncertain tax liabilities
and related interest and penalties with respect to foreign capital gains taxes at nil. While this represents management’s
best estimate there remains a nsk that foreign tax authorities will atternpt to collect taxes on capital gains earned by the
Sub-Trust. This could happen without giving any priar waming, pessibly on a retrospective basis, and could resultin a
substantial loss to the Sub-Trust

T. Significant Agreements and Related Parties
{a) Investment Management and Advisers Fee

Under the terms of the Management Agreamant, the Investiment Manager receives, from the assets of the Sub-Trust,
a quarterly fee accruing daily and calculated and paid on a quarterly basis in amears equal to 0.B0% of the Sub-
Trust's average NAV, determened as of the last business day of the apphcable quarter end, adpsted to reflect any
subscriptions, redemptions and distributions during the applicable calendar quarter. in addibon, subject to the consant
of the Investment Manager, the Trusiee reserves the nght to waive fees, or impose greater or lesser fees on, or to
rebate all or a portion of any of the investment management fees to any Unitholder, including affiliates of the Investment
Manager, as may be agreed 1o by the Investment Manager, Trustee and the applicable Uniholder. The investment
management fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 30 September 2020
and 30 September 2019, respectively

The Sub-Trust invests i an undedying fund which alse may pay investment management fees to the investment
advisors who are related parties to Yarma and GS Singapore. The Sub-Trust indirectly bears the expenses paid by the
undertying fund. The table below sets forth the fee rate for the underlying fund and is as follows:

Annual Fee
Underlying Fumnd Rato %
Australis Enhanced Income Fund ||, Class 10 (Acch AUD shares nil
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

T. Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)
b} Manager Fea

Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking {Luxembourg) S.A. ("MIBL" or the "Manager”) serves as the Manager of
the Sub-Trust

MIBL has been authorized as a commercial bank and is regulated in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg by the Commission
de Surseilkance du Sectewr Financier ("CSSF). It was ncotfporated in Luxembourg as a société anonyme on 11 Apnl
1874 as a majority—owned subsidiary of The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd

The Manager receies, from the assets of the Sub-Trust, a fee accruing daily and paid on a quarterly
basis in arears equal to 0.05% of the Sub-Trust's average MNAV. The manager fees for the years ended
30 September 2020 and 30 September 2018, are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income, respectively

i) Administration and Transfer Agent Fee

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. ("BEH") i the Sub-Trust's Adminstrator and Transfer Agent The Admenigtrator and
Transfer Agent perform certain day-to-day administrative tasks on behalf of the Sub-Trust, incuding maintenance of the
Sub-Trust's books and records, calculation of the NAY and payments of the Sub-Trust's expenses

BEH is paid solely out of the assets of the Sub-Trust including asset-based, safekeeping, transaction, sarvicing and
other fees as may be agreed upon from time to time with the Investment Manager. Addibonally, at month end, the
securties for the Sub-Trust are segregated based on the transaction type and a fee rate & applied. The Sub-Trust will
pay such fees monthly in amears.

Annual administration and transfer agent charges on the value of manth end average net assets will be assessed at the
Sub-Trust level, based on the following schedule:

Assels up 1o US0 500 mdion 4.0bps
Assets between USD SO0 milkion - USD 1 bilkon 10bps
Assels abowe UISD 1 bilion 2.5 bps

The Adsiristeation and Tramsles Agent feed. e comedsd feom ALID ba LISD

The adristration and transler agent fees ane desclosed in the Statements of Comprehensve Income fof the years
ended 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2018, respectively,

{d) Distributicn Fee
Until March 31, 2020, the Global Distributor recedved a fee, accruing daily and pasd on a quarterly basis in arrears, equal

to 0.50% of the Sub-Trust's average MNAY, adjusted to reflect any subscriptions, redemptions or distributions during the
applicable calendar quarter.

The distibution fees ae dsclosed i the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended
30 September 2020 and 30 September 2019, respectively.

{e) Trustes Fee

Brown Brothers Harmman Trust Company (Cayrman) Limited acts as the Trustee for the Sub-Trust The Trustee s
responsible for the overall supervision of the Sub-Trust's assets, pursuant to the terms of the Declaration of Trust The
Sub-Trust will pay such tees, monthly in arrears, to the Trustee egual to 0.01% of the average NAY,

The tustes fess are disclosed 0 the Statements of Comprebensive |ncome for the years ended
30 September 2020 and 30 September 2019, respectively
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T. Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)
{f) Custodian Fee

The Trustee has delegated the responsibility for custody of the Sub-Trust's assets to BBH. The custodian carmes out the
usual dubes regarding custody, cash and securties deposas, withoat any restniction. Fees are charged on safekeeping
of securities on a monkhly basis. At month end, the securities for the Sub-Trust are segregated based on the country of
ofigin. The USD aquivalent fair value is derved for gach security and a fee rate i applied based an country of arigin

The custcdian fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended
30 September 2020 and 30 September 2019, respectorely

[{:]] Agent Company Fee

Goldman Sachs Asset Management Co., Lid. acts as the Agent Company in Japan of the Sub-Trust The Agent
Company receives a fee, accruing daily and paid on a quarterly basis in amears, equal to 0.03% of the Sub-Trust's
average MAV.

The agent company fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended
30 September 2020 and 30 Seplember 2019, respactively

8. Redeemable Participating Units
Classes 1s5ue Prica linimurm [nitial Subscripdion
AUD AUD 10 AUD 100
JPY (Hedged) JPY 10,000 JPY 10,000
usD Ush 10 UsSD 100
USD (Hedged) UsD 10 S0 100

Lings will b offered for sale on each business day at the NAY per Unit of the applicakie class

Units ane redeemable at the option of the Unitholder upon notice given in accordance with the terms of the Cffering
Memerandum. Linits will be redesmed at the NAY per Unit of the applicable Class prevailing as of close of business on
the applicable Redemption Date, provided that the [nvestment Manager may, in its sole discretion, reduce such amount
by any expenses incurred in connection with such redemplion.

Linits of the Master Fund are also redeermable at the option of the Unihalder on demand upon notice gnen in accardance
with the terms. of the Offering Memarandum,

Az of 30 Septermber 2020 and 30 September 2019, the Sub-Trust had five and three Unitholders, respectively. One of
the unsthvoklers is a related party to the Manager.

The follcwing summarizes the activity in the Sub-Trust's Units

Humnber of Units

Class JPY Class USD

Class AUD (Hedged) Clas USD (Hedged

Balance 30 Eeptember 2018 18,230,354 460,021 4,.7E4,014 0,314,302
Subscriptions of redeemisble particpating Units 47 544 TE8 164, 655 & 20, 6 260, B, 62
Redemptions of redesmabls partcipating Uinks 200010 (5. 45} (1.223. 290 (3802 B45)
Balance 30 BEepiember 2040 B4 BTS 443 530,778 8247087 12,843 815
5 i of tedearmnibe participating Uinits 23,411,230 TZEN 4,022,685 12,670,082
Eedemptions of nedesmable participating Links 15033435 ANET. 403 13563, 299 BEE0.610)
Balance 30 September 2020 73,253.337 454,983 SI06ATT 15,553 457

9. HAV per Unit

The consideration recenved or paid for redeemabde participating Units sssued or re-purchased respectively is based on
the value of the Sub-Trusl's net assets value per redearmable partcipating Units at the date of the transsction
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10.

.

HAY per Unit {continued)

The NAV and MAY per Unit for each Unit class cutstanding for the Sub-Trust are as follows:

30-Sep-20:20 30-Sep-2019
Unit Class Het Assat Value HAW Par Unit HNat Assat Value HAVY Per Unit
Class AUD AUD SE3, 714782 AUD 8104863  AUD 569,604,558  AUD 8.783055
Class JPY (Hedged) ALD S1.743370  JPY BEO2OTTS42  ALD ETEMBEER  JPY 9131525746
Class USD AUD 69464430  USD 5345852 AUD 1,631,087 usD  S4TEas
Class USD (Hedged) AUD 451,839,832 usD 9716068  AUD 482 524 315 UsD  10.235001

Distributions

Distributions are made at the election of the |nvestment Manager and the amounts declared and paid during the years
ended 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2019 are disclosed in the Staterments of Comprehensive Income whan
et Assets Attributable Holders of Redeemable Participating Units are classified as a financial liabdity Distributions
to Unitholders reduce the Sub-Trust's NAV per Unit without any correspondmg change in the number of Units per
Unitholder. This results in a Unitholder's overall investment in the Sub-Trust being reduced. In addition, any distributions
paid during a period which are in excess of the Sub-Trust's accumulated net incomeal(loss) from cperations results in a
portion of the distributions being a return of capital

Financial Investments and Associated Risks

The Sub-Trust's investing activities expose it to vanous types of nisks that are associated with the financial investments
and markets in which the underlying Master Fund invests. These may be both derivative and non-derivative financial
mwestments. The Sub-Trust's investment portholio is compnsed of a sole underlying fund and dervative nvestments
at the period end. The Trustes has appointed the Investment Advisors o manage the nsks of the Sub.Trust The
signilicant types of financial risks which the Sub-Trust is exposed to are market risk, liquidity risk and credit rsk. The
Offering Memorandum provides details of these and other types of risk some of which are additional to that information
provided in these financial staterments.

Asset allocation i deterrnined by the Sub-Trust's Imvestment Advisars who manage the allecation of assets 1o achieve
the investment objective as detaided in Mote 2 Achievernent of the investment cbjective involves taking risks. The
Investment Advisors exercise judgment based on analysis, research and risk management techniques when making
imvestment decistons. Divergence from the benchmark andfor the target asset allocation and the composition of the
partfoko is monitered in accardance with the Sub-Trust's risk management policy.

The existence of multiple investment vehicies potentially inwesting in the same underlying fund, presents cartain unique
risks to investors. The Sub-Trust may be matenally affected by the actions of ancther entity investing in the same
underlying fund. For example, if another Unitholder of the underlying fund redeemns some or all of its interests, the Sub-
Trust, may experience higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing lower refurns. Simitarly, the underkying
fund may become less diverse due to redemptions from its other Unitholders, resulting in increased porfolio nsk
The underlying fund may restnct its investment activites or be pracluded from investing in certain instruments due to
regulMory restnctions on certain of 45 dwect or indirect investors of otherwse, which may have an adverse effect on the
perfarmance of the undarlying fund, and, in furn, the Sub-Trust
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

The risk managemeant policies employed in relaton to the Sub-Trest are detailed below:

{a) Market Risk

The patential for changes in the fair valse of the Sub-Trust's investment portfolio is referred to as market rsk. Commonly
usad categories of market risk include currency risk, interest rate nsk and other price risk

. CurmEncy sk may result from exposunes to changes in spot prices, forward prices and volatilties of cunency
rafes.

. |nterest rate risk ray result from exposures. to changes in the level, slope and curvature of the varicus yield
curves, the volatiity of interest rates, mortgage prepayment speeds and credi spreads

. (Hher price sk is the risk that the value of an mwestmant will fluctuate as a result of changes in marked prices
other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk and may result from exposures to changes in
the prices and volatities of individual equities, equity taskets, equity indices, and commodities

The market risk strategy i driven by the Sub-Trust's mvestment risk and return objectives.

Market risk is managed through the application of risk budgeting principles. The Investment Advisors deterrmine an
appropriate rigk targel, commanly referred to as Tracking Error, emploving a rsk budgeting framewark,

A Market Risk Analysis Group at Goldman Sachs "IMD MRA'} is responsible for independently ronitoring, analyzing
and reporting the market risks taken by the Investment Advisors. IMD MRA uses a number of risk metnics to monitor the
market risks including maonitoring sensitivities, and Tracking Error,

Dietails of the Sub-Trust's investment portfiolio at the reporting date are disclosed in the Schedules of Investments. All
individual collective investment schemes and derivative investments are dsclosed separately,

(i) Currency Risk

Each currency class of the portfolio will seek to hedge against each relevant cumrency (with the exception of the USD
class which is discussed further below). This is referred 1o as Class Hedging. Moreover, where a Unitholder invests in
Units of a Hedged Class that are hedged into a class currency other than the home currency of the Unitholder's own
jurisdicton, such Unithalder will be exposed to the significant risk that the class currency will depreciate against such
harme currency

Hedging with the relevant class curmency 5 not necessanly complete and each curmency class may be subject to
currency exchange fluctuaton of the currency in which the Units have been kaued,

The assats of the Sub-Trust are denominated in AUD, the value of the USD Class wall fluctuate in line with the USDY
ALUD mechangs rate regardless of underlying performance.

In principle, each class of the Sub-Trust is hedged to the currency of that class with the exception of the USD class.
Hedging gains and losses, with respect to hedging activity undertaken by the Sub-Trust on behalf of a Currency Class,
ate allseated solely to that respective curency class,

The Sub-Trust may invest in financial investments and enter into transactions denominated in cumencies other than
thesr functional currency. Consequently, the Sub-Trust may be exposed to nsks that the exchange rate of their functional
currency relatve to other foreign currencies may change in @ manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that
partion of the Sub-Trust's assets or kabildies denominated In currencles other than their functional currency. Please
refer to the Schedules of Investments of the Sub-Trust which detads investments in curmencies other than its functional
currency. At 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2019, substantially all non-ALID investments were hedged to the
AUD. This is referrad to as Portfolio Hedging.

When an investor invests into a Unit class which is in a different currency to the base curency of the Sub-Trust in which
it invests, the currency risk of the imvestor will be different to the currency risk of the Sub-Trust
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11 Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
fa) Market Risk [continued)
{i) Currency Risk (continued)

The Sub-Trust had no significant cumency sk exposure at 30 Septernber 2020 and 30 Septernber 2019,

Althaugh not affecting total Sub-Trust net income, the value of the USD class will flustuate in ling with LUISDIALID
exchange rate. Therefore, a 15% appreciation/depreciation in the USD will impact the net assets of the respective USD
class by +/- 15% and will not have any impact on the cther classes

The Sub-Trust had following currency concentrations, including hedging. greater than +/-5% of NAV as at 30 September

2020 and 20 September 2019
Cumency Currency
concentration concentration
Currency 30-Sop-2030  30-Sep-20M5
usD 40.41% 39,82%
JPY - 5.67%
= Aresdsil b fess fhan 5%,

For the Master Fund, there were no currency concentrations, inciuding hedgng, greater than +/-5% of NAV at 30
Septernber 2020 and 30 Saptember 2015,

{11} Interest Rate Risk

The Sub-Trust may invest in fed income Securnties through its indirect exposure to the nvestments of the Master
Fund. Any change to the relevant mterest rates for particular secuntes may resull in the Investment Advisors being
unabde to sacure similar returns on the expsry of the contracts or the sale of securities. In additon, changes to prevailing
imterest rates or changes in expestations of future rates may result in an increase or decrease in the value of the
secunties held. In genaral, if interest rates rise, the value of the fwed income securibes will decline. A deching in interest
rates will in general have the opposite effect

The Sub-Trust may invest in instruments in desired cumencies at fied, fleating and Zero rates of interest through its
indirect exposure to the investment of the Master Fund.

The Sub-Trust had na significant direct interest rate rsk exposure at 30 Seplember 2020 and 30 September 2019,
howeser the Sub-Trust did bave indrect interest rate exposure via the Master Fund's Investment portfalic
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Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
Market Risk [continued)
(i) Intarest Rate Risk [continued)

The interest rate profile of the financial assets and labilities of the Sub-Trust is as fallows:

Al 30-Sep-2020
Mo Irftaerast
Up to1 year 1- Sysars  OQwer § yoars Baaring Total

Assels
Cash and cash aguivalents 36,602 455 - - 1578 35,604,073
Financial assets held for trading andfor

hedging - - = 1180982108 1,180962108
Recebvable for investments sold = - = 23225519 23225539
Oiher assels - = - 11,202,327 11,202,327
Total Assets 36,602,495 = = 121530 552  1,751,994,47
Liabilities
D bo bank - - - - -
Financial abillies held for rading andior

hedging - - - 20,232,168 20,232,188
Payable for imvestments purchased = - - 16,374,500 16,374,500
Other liabilties - - - 18,524 955 18,524 555
Tatal Liabilities excluding net assets

allributable to Unithalders - - - 55,131 623 55,131 623
Al 30-Sep-2019

Non Interest
Up to1 year 1- Sysars  Qver 5 years Baaring Total

Asselg
Cash and cash equivalents 25,328,255 - - 4,064 2533218
Financial assets held for rading andior

hedgung - - - 11TH.655412 1179655412
Receivable for investments sold - - - 583,016 563018
Cther assels = - - 3,277 290 1277 H0
Total Assets 25,328,255 - - 121,499,782 1,736,828,027
Liabilities
Financial liabilties held for trading andfor

hedging = - = 1,689,723 1,688,723
Payable for Evestments purchased - - - 27,549 965 27,548 565
Other liabilties - - - 5,789,720 5,7E8,720
Tatal Liabilities excluding nat assels

aliributable to Unitholders = = = 35,029,408 15,029,408
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{a) Market Risk [continued)
(i) Interest Rate Risk {continued)

The interest profile of the financial assets and liabilties of the Master Fund is as follows:

Al 30-Sep-2020
Haon Inferest
Uptoiyear 91- Syesars  Ower Syears Bearing Total

ASSels
Financial assets held for rading andior

hedging BB5 544 713 BB 170418 147 364,050 47,528,189 1,166,707, 348
Total Assats BE5,644, 713 BEATOA16 147,364,050 AT, 528,969 1,166,707, 348
Liabilities
Financial kabiities held for rading and’

o hedgng 1,254 353 - - - 1.254 353
Total Liabllities axcluding not assets

attributable to Unitholders 1,254,353 - - - 1,284,353
Al 30-Sep-2019

Hon Interast
Uptodyear 91- Syears  Qwar S years Bearing Total

Assels
Financial assets held for rading andior

hedging 741458584 253187218 110,038.529 2113538 1,136,896 284
Tatal Assats T41,458,584 253187218 110,036,929 32,131,538 1,136,896, 264
Liabilities
Financial abilties held for rading and’

o hedging 114,343 057 - - - 114343057
Tatal Liabliities excluding net assets

atiributable to Unitholders 114, 343,057 - - - 114,343,057

{ill}  Other Price Risk

Cther price rigk i the risk that the value of a inancial investrient will fluctuate as 3 result of changes n market prices,
other than those ansing from currency nisk or interest rate risk whether caused by factors specific to an individual
investment, &5 ssuer or any factor affecting financial investments traded in the market.

As the Sub-Trust's financial investrments are carned at fair value with fair value changes recognized in the Statermnents
of Comprehensve Income, all changes in marke! conditions will directly affect Net Assets Attnbutable Holders of
Redeamable Participating Units.

The Sub-Trust's investments in collective investment schemesimutueal funds are based upon the MAY as supplied
by the underlying funds, in accordance with the valuation policy of the applicable fund as outlined in s Offering
Memorandum, While it is expected that the assats of the mutual funds will generally be valued by an independant third
party administrator of other seqvice provider, there may be crourmstances in which certaln securties or ather assets of
a mutual fund may not have a readily ascertainable market price. In such circumstances, the manager of the relevant
mutual fund may be required to value such securities ar instruments
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11 Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
fa) Market Risk [continued)
[iii} Other Price Risk {continued)

The following analysis for the Sub-Trust is presented based on the indirect exposure to the investments of the underlying

furd
Impact on NAY for a 10% Price Movement
30-Sep-20 10-Sep-20 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-19
Higher Lawesr Higher Lovwesr
Banks 4. 1% (4.1%) 4.5% {4 5%}
Insurance 1.6% (199 2.3% (2.3%%)
Hetels, Matels, Inns &

Gaming 0.4% 10.4%) 0.4% (0.4 %)
Funds 0.4% 0.4%: 0.3% (0. 3%:)
Financials 0.65% 10.6%) 0.5% {0,555
Other 26% [2.6%) 1.6% {1.6%:)
Total Porifalio 10.0% (10.0%:) 10.0% {10.0%])

{iv) Limitatiens of Sensitivity Analysis
Some of the limitations of the sensitivity analysis tables above include;

. the analysis is based on histoncal data and cannot take account of the fact that future market price movements,
correlations bebween markets and levels of market liquidity may bear no relation to histonical patterns;

. the analysis is a relabve estimate of nsk rather than a precse and accurate number,

. the analyss represents a hypothetoal suteome and is not intended to ba predictive; and

. future market conditions could vary significantly from those experienced in the past

i) Liguidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the nsk that the Sub-Trust will encounter difficulty in meeting cbligations associated with financial
labllites that are settled by delivering cash or ancther financial asset Among other things liquidity could be impaired by
an inability to access secured andfor unsecured sources of financing, an inabdity to sell assets or unforeseen oufflows
of cash or collateral or violations of counterparty of peime broker terms or covenants. This situation may arise due
o circumstances outside of the Sub-Trust's contral, such as a general market disruption or an operational problem
affectng the Sub-Trust or third parties. Also, the ability to sell assets may be irpaired if other market participants are
saeking o sell similar assets at the same time.

The Sub-Trust's financial assets and financial liabitties inciude investrments in dervative confracts traded over the
counter, which are not traded in an organized public market and which may be illiquid and in investments which may
represent a significant percentage of Ssue size. A% a result, the Sub-Trust may net be able o quidate quickly some
of thesa irvestments at an amount close to fair value in order to meet requirements, or to respond to specific events
such as detenoration in the creddworthiness of any particular issuer. The forced liquidation of investment positions may
cause financial losses

The Sub-Trust's investments include colective mvestment schemes, which may impose greater restrichons cn
redemplions than those imposed by the Sub-Trust This may include offerings less frequent redemption dates than ane
offered by the Sub-Trnust to its Unitholders.

The Sub-Trust provides for the subscription and redemption of Units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk
associated wath Unithcider redempticns in accordance wath the terms in the Offering Memoandum. The Sub-Trest's
CHfering Memarandum provides for the daily subsenption and redemption of Linds,

The Sub-Trust is managed to include Bquid investments sufficient to meet normal [quidity needs athough substantal
redemptions of Units in the Sub-Trust could require the Sub-Trust to lquidate its investments more rapidly than
otherwise desirable in order to rase cash for the redemptions. These factors could adversely affect the value of the
Units redeemed and the valuation of the Umits that remain cutstanding and the liquidity of the Sub-Trust's remaining
assets if more ligued assets have been soid to meet redemptions
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
(b} Liquidity Risk [continued)

The Trustee may limit or suspend redemptions in certain circumstances, including, but not imited to, when the
determination of NAV has been suspended, where the disposal of pant or all of the Sub-Trust's assels to meet
such redemption requests would, in the reascnable opinion of the Trustee, be prejudicial to Unitholders; or under
extraordinary circumstances beyond the control of the Trustee, With respect to any redemplion, having consulted with
the Irvestment Manager, the Trustee may reserve amounts from the redemption proceeds for any expenses, liabilities
of contingencies, even if such reserves are not required by IFRS

As at 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2019, all Bability amounts are due within three months,

As at 30 September 2020, gross inflows and gross cutflows for forward foreign currency contracts were AUD
1.896574,107 and ALD 1,713,626,530, respectively.

As at 30 September 201 8, gross inflows and gross.outflows for forward foreign currency contracts were ALID 578, 210,558
and ALID 580,272 863, respectively.

Forward foreign currency contracts are generally settled net
Financing arrangements include dervative transactions.

Expiration of terminaticn of available financing for ieveraged positions, and the reguirements to past coliateral in respesct
of changes in the fair value of leveraged exposures or changes in advance rates or other terms and conditions of the
Sub-Trust's linancing arrangements, can result in adverse effects to the Sub-Trust's access to liquidity and ability te
maintain leveraged positions, and may cause the Sub-Trust to incur matenial lbosses. The Sub-Trust may bodrow or
ulilize ather forms of leverage (on a secured and unsecured basis) for any puipose moluding, increasing investment
capacity. and covering operating expenses or for the settlement of transactions. However, there is no guarantee that
any such amangemants for ablaming leverage will be available, or, & available, will be available on terms and condibons
acceptatie to the Sub-Trust Unfavarable economic condiions also could increase funding costs, limit access to the
capital markets of result in & decion by lenders not to extend credit to the Sub-Trust.

The use of leverage also increases risk as it magniies the effect of any volatility in fair values on the Sub-Trust's Met
Assels Attibutable Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.

Adecling in the market value of the Sub-Trust's assets may have particular adverse consequences in nstances whene
they have borrewed money on the market value of those assets. A decrease in the market value of those assets may
result in the lender (including derivative counterparties) requinng the Sub-Trust 1o post addtional collateral or cthersise
sell assets at a time when it may not be in the Sub-Trust's best interest to do so.

{e) Credit Risk

Credit risk s the nsk that one parly 1o a fimancial mvestment will cause a financial loss for the other party By failing to
discharge an cbligation.

The Investment Advisors have adopted procedures to reduce credit risk related to its dealings with counterparties
of issuers in the Sub-Trust Belore fransacting, the Investment Advisors or their related parties evaluate bath credit-
worthiness and reputation by conducting a credit analysis of the party, thesr business and reputation. The credit nisk
of approved counterparties ar Sauars s then monitared on an ongoing basis, including penodic reviews of linancial
staternents and interim financial reports as needed.

In order to reduce exposure to credt losses, some over-the-counter dervative agreements enterad into by the Sub-Trust
permit netting of transactions ansing under such agreements, excluding those with counterparties executing only spot
foreign exchange contracs, Whike such netting nghts do not result in an offset of reported assets and labiites, they
do provide for the reduction of credit risk on favorable over-the-counter transactions with a single counterparty to the
extent of the value of unfaverable oves-the-counter transactions wath the same counterparty upon the occurrence of an
event of default or temenation event as all over-the-counter ransactions with the counterparty under such agresment
are terminated and amounts owed from and amounts payable to the counterparty ane settled on a net basis.

a2

165/286



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

.

(=)

Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
Cradit Risk [continued)

Debt securities are subject to the nsk of issuer's or a guarantor's inabdity to meet pnncipal and interest payments on
i3 obligatons and are subject 1o prce volatilly due 1o factors such as interest rate sensitivity, rmarket perception of the
creditworthiness of the isswer, and general market liquadity.

The Sub-Trust is subject 1 a number of reks relating to the insolvency, adminstration, liquidation or ather formal
protection from creditors (Insobrency™) of the Custodian or any sub-custodian / Trustee. These risks include without
lmetation:

i The logs of all cash held with the Custodian or sub-custodian / Trustee which 5 nat being treated as chent
money both at the level of the Custodian and any sub-custodians / Trustee (“chent money™)

i The loss of all cash which the Custodian or sub-custodian / Trustee has failed to treat as clent money in
accordance with procedures (f any) agreed with the Sub-Trust

i The loss of some ar all of any securities hekd on Sub-Trust which have not been properly segregated and so
identified both at the level of the Custodian and any sub-custodians [ Trustee ("Trest Assels”) or client money
held by or with the Cusiodian or sub-custodian f Trustee.

i The loss of some or all assets due to the incorrect cparation of accounts by the Custodian or sub-custodian
I Trustee or due to the process of identifying and transfemng the relevant Trust Assets andior client money
including any deduction to meet the administrative costs of an insohvency.

¥ Lesses caused by prolonged delays in receiving transfers of balances and regaining control over the relevant
assets

An insolvency could cause savere distuption to the Sub-Trust's investment activity. In some crcumstances, this could
cause the Investment Manager to temporanily suspend the calculation of the MAY and dealing in Units

Cash held with the Trustee may be pooled with the Trustee's cash and, in respect of that cash, the Sub-Trust may rank
a5 a general creditor of the Trustee in the event of the Trustee's insolvency. Non-cash coltateral held with the Custodian
are held in segregated accounts and are not expected to be pocled and therefore should not be available to other
creditors of the Trustee in the event of an insolvency. The Trustee may also appoint sub-custodians 1o hodd certain
assels on behalf of the Sub-Trust In the case of Bankruptey or insolvency of a sub-custodian, the Sub-Trust's rights
with respect to those assets may be delayed, limited or reduced.

At 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2018, the followeng financial assets were exposad to credit riske dermvative
financial assets, cash and cash equivalents and other recervables. The camying amaunts of financial assets best reflect
the matimum counterpay credit risk exposure at the reporting date

The maximum exposure to credit risk {excluding notional values on forward foreign cumency contracts) as at the
reparting date can be analyzed as foflows. Amounts in the table below are based on the market value

30-Sep-2020 30-Sep-2010
Instrumend Type™ AUD AUD
Cash and cash equivalents 36,604,073 25332319
Diue from brokers:

Collatedsl amounts 8,300,000 3,830,000
Forsard forelgn curmency conbracts. 3,476 745 627 655
Receivable for invesiments sold 23,725,539 563,016
Interest recenable a7 781
Recersable for Unds subscribed 2,801,356 27,638,599
Talal 74 211,684 57,800,284

“Open anded el P ans ngt inch i Thitt Leble sincs (hiyy do real sxpose the Sub-Trust to direct copell gk,

The Sub-Trust has the following expesure to underlying issuer credit risk

Rating 10-Sep-2020__30-Sep-2019
Met Rated 100.00 100.00
Tatal 100.00% 100.00%
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Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
Cradit Risk [continued)

The Master Fund has the following exposure to issuer credit nsk (as a percentage of total market value of the Master
Fund).

Security ratings, if any, are obtained from S&PMoody's/Fitch Investor Service.

30-Sep-F0Z0  30-Sep-2019
%

Rating %

A 0.86 1.76
BBE 5534 E5.84
Bg 1018 1468
B 1.18 ars
sl 0.21 -
Mot Rated 2912 1283
Total 100, 00% 100,009

The table above indicates the credit quality of the Master Fund's investments. Counterparties or issuers are rated
efher investment grade in thesr own nght of if not rated then an entity in the corporate family tree has such a rating
and the Credit Risk Management and Adviscry department of the |nvestment Manager bebeves there is strong implicit
support fram the rated entity to the counterparty or issuer. The Investment Advsors have a credit policy in place and
the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

A credit default swap is an agreement that involves one party making a stream of payments to another party in exchange
for the night to receie protection an a reference security or obligation. As a seller of protection, the Sub-Trust generally
receives a payment stream througheat the term of swap, provided that there is no credit event. In addition, if the Sub-
Trust sells protection through a credit defaull swap, the Sub-Trust could suffer a loss because the value of the reference
obligation may be less than the premium payments received. Upon the occurrence of a specific credit event. the Sub-
Trust, as a seller of credit protection, may be reguired to take possession of the defaulted reference ob®gation and
pay the buyer an amount equal to the national ameunt of the swap in a physical settled trade. The Sub-Trust may alse
pay a net settlemeant amount in the form of cash or securties equal to the notenal amount of the swap reduced by the
recovery value of the reference obligation in a cash settled trade. Recovery values are at times established through
the credit event auction process in which market pafticipants are ensured that a fransparent price has been set for the
defautted secunty or obligabon. In addfion, the Sub-Trust is entitled to a return of any assets which have been pledged
as collateral to the counterparty. The netional amount of the Sub-Trust's credit default swaps. if any, is disclosed in
the Schedules of investments. There were no cradit default swaps as at 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2018,

The Sub-Trust had no direct counterparty or issuer credit risk greater than 5% of the Net Assets Attributable Holders of
Redeamable Participating Units as at 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2019

The Sub-Trust measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probabilty of defaull, expesure at default and
loss given default. Management consider both historical analysis and forward looking information in determining any
expected credit loss. Management consider the probabiity of default to be close to zero as the counterparties have a
strong capacity to meed their contractual obbgations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognized
based on 12-manth expected credit losses as any such impairment would be whally insignificant to the Sub-Trust

Far the Master Fund the following table sets forth concentrations greater than 5% of NAY,

10-Bop-H20  I0-Sop-20H4
% of Het Assels of

Concentration Mastor Fund
Hational Ausirahin Bank Lid 860 753
Comransealth Bank of Australia 814 £30
AMP Lid 552 &046
Inswrance Ausirakia Group 545 A
Ausiralia & New Zealand Banking Group Lid R 03
‘Wasipac Banking Comp e 840
Suntop-Mebway Lid ety 543
Amianl i b han %,
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{d} Additional Risks
Additional nsks include, but are not limited to the following;

i} Capial Risk Management

The capital of the Sub-Trust is represented by the Net Assets Attributable Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.
The amcunt of the Met Assets Attnbutable Holders of Redeemable Participating Units can change signficantly on a
daily basis as the Sub-Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and redemptions at the discretion of Unitholder The Sub-
Trust's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Sub-Trust's abiity to conlinue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for Unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base (o suppon the
dewvelopment of the investment activities of the Sub-Trust.

{id) Concantration Risk

The Sub-Trust may invest in a limited number of investments and investment themes, A consequence of a Emited
number of mvestments is that performance may be more favorably or unfavorably affected by the performance of an
individual investment.

(i) Operational Risk

Cperational risk is the potental for loss caused by a deficiency in information, communications, transaction processing
and settlement, and accounting systems. The Sub-Trust's service providers, as shown in Mote 7, maintain contrals and
procedures for the purpese of helping to manage operational risk. Reviews of the service levels of service providers
are performed on a regular basis by the Investment Advisors, Mo assurance is given that these measures will be 100%
effectve

) Legal, Tax and Regulatory Risks

Legal, tax and regulatory changes could occur during the duration of the Sub-Trust which may adversely affect the
Sub-Trust.

With respect to tax, the Sub-Trust may be subject to taxation on capital gains, interest and dividends in certain
jurigdictons where the Sub-Trust imvests,

The interpretation and applicabdity of the tax law and regulations by tax authorities at times may not be clear or
consistent Tax obligations where probable and estimable are recorded as liabilites. However, some tax cbligations
afe subject to uncertainty and may result in addibional tax kabilties, serest and penalies based en future actions,
interpretations or judgments of these authonties covering current and past tax positions. Accounting standards may
ako change, creating of removing an obligation for the Sub-Trust to accrue for a potential tax Habikty, Consequently, it
is possible that certain potential tax ablsgations which currently are not probable may become so which may result in
additional tax Habdites for the Sub-Trust in the future and these additional llabilities may be matenal, Because of the
foregoing uncertainties, the NAV may not reflect the tax liabikties ultimately bome by the Sub-Trust, including at the
tirne of any subscriptions, redemptions or exchanges of interests in the Sub-Trust, which could have an adversa impact
on investors at that time.

Additional details of sk not desclosed inthessfinancial staterments can befound in the Sub-Trust's Offering Memaorandum.
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12.

13,

14.

15.

16,

Credit Institutions.

As at 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2018, all cash and cash equivalents and amounts due fromfto brokers
were held by the following credit institubons with a credit rating of A or higher. Credit mstitution rabings ane cbtained from
SEP's  Moody's Investars Service [ Fitch Riatings and are unaudited.

| Assats 30-Sep-2020 30-5ep-2019
% of Net % of Nal
Coai s AUD Assels AUD Assels
Ausiralin and Hew Zealond Banking Group Lid™ 16,993,373 1.42 7.224 GBS 0.60
Barciays Bank PLCT 105092 0.01 = -
Brewn Brethers Harriman & Co. | 2 510,657 0.21 = -
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co = 1,578 0, O 4 DEL 0.0
BMNF Panibas SA" 16,993 373 142 47087 Q.00

HMational Audtralia Bank Lid' = 18,056 482 1.51

Tata cash and cash equivalants 36,504,073 .06 25,332,319 211

Due from brokers: 0

Auwstralia and New Zesland Banking Greup Lid 840,000 0.07

BMNP Paribas S A 660,000 [ - =

Citibank HA = = 1180000 K]

HSEL Bank FLC - - FE0. 000 0.06
Morgoan Stanley 4,300,000 035 - =

State Street Bank & Trust Co. 340000 0.03

Wesipat BANKInG Corporanen = 530,000 oo7

Tatal due from brokers 2,300,000 070 3,630,000 .30

vy Dibgriat

i rureesaniolied = CLstod L MO0

A Sltchad - cith aollalies! o forwied forssgn currency conlrachy
Al SCiam BMEURTE RAnang 1o e han 0005

Liabilities 30-Sep-2020 -Sep-2013

% of Net % of Nat
L= pary AUD Assals AUD Assels

Due to brokers:
HSEL Bank PLC = = 520,004

85|

Tolsl dus lo brokers - - 620,000

g ] — i ot o Ksfwan] Brgign Guminsy contrach

Exchange Rates

The following exchange rates (against AUD) were used to convert the investrments and other assets and liabilites
denominated in currencies othes than AUD

30-8ep.2020 30-Sop-2019

Japanesa Yen (JFY) 75638631 T2h81186
Uinited States Dollar (USD) 0.718750 0674450

Soft Commissions
Thie Sub-Trust may pay commissians for execution anly andior for execution and investrment research, The Sub-Trust

did rot otherwsse enter into any third party soft commission arrangements for the years ended 30 September 2020 and
30 September 2019,

Contingent Liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities as at 30 Septermber 2020 and 30 Septernber 2018

Other Matters

During the period, global markets experienced a significant increase in volatility across all financal instruments as a
result of the COVID-18 pandemic. The situation i being actively monitared and any significant developments pertaining
to changes in the operation of the Sub-Trust will be communicated 10 investors
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17.

18.

19,

Subsequent Events

Mo events occurred subsequent to 30 September 2020 that would require adjustment to, or disclosure in these financial
staternents.

Indemnifications
The Sub-Trust may enter into contracts that contain a variety of indemnifications. The Sub-Trust's maximum exposure

undes these arrangements = unknown, However, the Sub-Trust has net had prior claims of losses pursuant 1o these
coniracis.

Approval of the Financial Statements

Management has approved the finandal statements on 20 December 2020 and the financal statements may not be
amended after issuance.
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund

Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2020

% of
Heldings/ Fair Value Net
Units  Description AUD  Assets
Investment Fund®
Australian Dellar
7.377,740  Australia Enhanced Income Fund |l - Class 10 (Acg), AUD shares 1,177 782 353 2341
Total Investment Fund 1,177,762,363 63,41

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging Purposes

Unrealized % of

Maturity Amount Amount Loss Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Assets
011002020 uso 283 240 AUD 405,099 Standard Chartered Bank (2 850 (000}
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Pertfolic Hedging
Purposes {2,250) (0.00)
Foerward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging Purposes
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Gain Net
Date Currency Bought __ Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Assets
Australia and New Zealand
0102020 ALD 4421318 uso 3,145,735 Banking Group Lid 3243 0.00
02020 ALD 8100814 uso 5,698,756 Morgan Stanley & Co 149,987 om
01102020 ALD 244 090,783 usD 174,036,714 BNP Paribas 54 1,277,071 o1
0102020 ALID 254 424 853 uso 181,455,930 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 1,258,760 o2
Canoz020 ALD 26,358 275 JPY 1,980,745 581 HSBC Bank PLC 170,552 o
COMO2020 ALD 28530028 JPY 2144 363 684 State Strest Bank & Trust Co, 187 840 oo
21122020 AUD 2432287 usD 1,731,000 Standard Chartered Bank 17,758 0o
CRMO2020 JEY 78,056 815 AUD 1,027,712 Morgan Stanley & Co 4327 000
Australia and New Zealand
0102020 usD 461,000 ALD 534,313 Banking Group Ltd 8,868 0.00
01102020 usD 1,507 169 AUD 2,068,945 HSEC Bank PLC 33838 000
01102020 uso 2,334,000 AUD 3,218,852 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 37 504 0.00
Tetal Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 3,175 745 0,26
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Met
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Assets
01102020 ALD 412,632 usD 300,738 UBS AG (7.023) (0.00)
0112020 ALD B84, 316 uso 706,000 Royal Bank of Canada (4.871) (0.00)
CennR020 ALID 122,665 JPY 9,497 98 Morgan Stanley & Co (2.813) {0000
Australia and New Zealand
CaM2020 ALD 123,780 JPY 9,418,745 Banking Group Ltd (T41) {0.00)
CaMO2020 ALD 243 412 JPY 18,887 938 Citibank M4 (2673 {0000)
CaMQ2020 JPY 20042397 514 ALD 27,415,381 State Street Bank & Trust Co, (412.838) (0.03)
CaMor2020 JEY 20042297 815 ALD 27,415,968 Standard Charterad Bank (413,425) (0.0}
23N 2020 JEY 1,080,745 581 AUD 26,370,210 State Street Bank & Trust Co. (155,411) (0.0}
23N 22020 JPY 1,980,745, 581 ALUD 26,376,011 HSEC Bank PLC (e2.212) (0.01)
0102020 LED 180,256 465 ALUD 280,027,781 Morgan Stanley & Co (B,535,383) (0.71)
0102020 usD 180, 758 885 AUD 280,118,572 ENP Panbas 54 (7. B84.327) (0.85)
21122020 usD 174,035,714 AUD 244,131,851 State Street Bank & Trust Co. (1,372,350) (0.12)
21122020 usD 174,035 714 AUD 244,031,552 BMP Paribas SA [1.272051) [0.11)

Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Curreéncy Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes

(20,229.218)  [1.59)

Thie sccompanying notas form an integral part of the finsncal siEmants. B
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 20 September 2020

% of
Fair Value Net
Total Investments AUD Assels
Total Irnvestment Fund 1,177,782 363 8341
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging
Purposes (2,950) (0.00)
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 3178, 745 026
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes (20,229, 218) (1.68)
Cther Assets and Liakilities 36,132 484 3.02
Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units 1,156,862 424 100.00
Represents afliliated holding.
Currency Abbreviations:
ALID Australan Dollar
JPY Japanese Yen
ush United States Dollar
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. T
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2019

% of
Heldings/ Fair Value Net
Units  Description AUD  Assets
Investment Fund*
Australian Dellar
7,338,652  Australia Enhanced Income Fund |l - Class 10 (Acc), AUD shares 178,027 753 98.11
Total Investment Fund 1,179,027,753 A1
Ferward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging Purposes
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Ameunt Loss Met
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Assets
ongRme ALID 12,476 ush 8,423 HSBC Bank PLC (12 (000}
Australia & Mew Zealand
Q1IMORME ALID 9,350,820 usD 341,808 Banking Group Lid {12,044) (0.00)
2102018 AUD 2,052,714 UsD 1,367,130 Standard Chartered Bank (3, 965) {000
Australia & Menw Zealand
0102018 JPY o 514 TES ALD 130,566 Banking Group Lid {332) {0.00)
Total Unrealized Loss on Farward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Pertfolio Hedging
Purposes (16,357} [0.00)
Ferward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Glass Hedging Purposes
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Gain Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Assets
14112018 AUD 133,107 JEY 9 864 080 Standard Chartered Bank 333 000
141172018 JEY 54,281,000 AUD 735,844 Standard Chartered Bank 2914 000
13117219 uso 4,955,631 AUD 7,206,347 Standard Chartered Bank 30,339 0.
13128 ust 7,143,685 ALD 10,472,066 LBS AG 103,994 oo
131128 uso 150,226,024 AUD 222234 800 HEBC Bank PLC 171,037 oo
Australia & New Zealand
131152018 uso 171,453,435 AUD 253 520,442 Banking Group Lid 312042 0.0z
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes B2T 659 0.05
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty AUD  Asgets
Australia & New Zealand
13117208 AUD 1,453,554 UsD 1,012,477 Banking Group Ltd {5,393 (0.00)
13M1r2018 AUD 2820113 UsD 1,801,000 Standard Chartered Bank (46 ,222) {0.00)
Australia & Mew Zealand
141117218 ALD 352136 JEY 25,979,000 Banking Group Lid (4,786) (0.00)
141117208 JPY 2435785037 AUD 34,273,089 Westpac Corp (808,213) (0.07)
14M11r2019 JPY 2,4568,210.416 AUD 34,554,249 Citibank NA (BOE T52) (0.07)
Total Unrealized Loss an Farward Forelgn Currency Contracts held far Class Hedging
Purposes [1,673,368) [0.14)

The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smlements.
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2019

% of
Fair vValue Net
Total Investments ALD Assels
Total Investrment Fund 1,179,027, 753 281
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging
Purposes (18,357 (0.00)
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes G627 650 005
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes (1,673,356) (014)
Other Assets and Liabilities 23 832 840 1658
Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units 1,201,798 629 100.00
Represents afliliated holding.
Currency Abbreviations:
ALID Australan Dollar
JRY Japanese Yen
ush United States Dallar
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. ]
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2021
1,111,656,470.21 89,021,450,134
22,610,102.05 1,810,616,972
53,814,254 .65 5,622,513,326
540,351,539.27 43,271,351,265
3,811,242,997
330,768,558.57 34,558,698,999
9,281,668.05
66,204,999.43
435,981.32
33,533,521.06
5.80 606
8.16 653
8,742
9.86 1,030
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2021
187,117,965.90 196
5,051,655 37.04
2016 37,117,968.52
2017 37,117,968.52
2017 11 187,117,965.90
2018 187,117,965.90
2019 187,117,965.90
2020 187,117,965.90
2021 187,117,965.90

¢
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5,058,574,530.80
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131

23 103

2021 29
104.48
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UFJ S.A.

2019 12 31

2019 2018

31.1,31.3 3,122,139,702 326,201,156  3,714,129,527 388,052,253

3,15,31.1,31.3 3,708,799,645 387,495,387  3,533,550,709 369,185,378

2,480,378,645 259,149,961  2,311,150,709 241,469,026

1,228,421,000 128,345,426  1,222,400,000 127,716,352

31.1,31.3 670,745 70,079 372,880 38,959
4,31.1,31.3 2,783 291 2,834 296
5 3,551,365 371,047 3,783,033 395,251

365 38 257 27

6,15 37,533,722 3,921,523 36,979,553 3,863,624

7 6,872,698,327 718,059,521  7,288,818,793 761,535,787
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UFJ S.A.

2019 12 31

2019 2018

15,31.1 1,156,999,949 120,883,355 1,794,570,343 187,496,709
1,156,999,949 120,883,355  1,565,940,343 163,609,447

0 0 228,630,000 23,887,262

8,15,31.1 5,228,117,398 546,233,706  5,073,055,610 530,032,850

5,228,117,398 546,233,706  5,071,655,610 529,886,578

0 0 1,400,000 146,272

9 1,232,118 128,732 2,206,816 230,568
10,15 29,941,563 3,128,295 15,704,349 1,640,790
21,488,541 2,245,123 18,148,556 1,896,161

11 20,080,003 2,097,959 16,536,604 1,727,744

12 1,408,538 147,164 1,611,952 168,417

13 187,117,966 19,550,085 187,117,966 19,550,085

14 197,956,757 20,682,522 158,191,749 16,527,874

14 988 103 3,259 341
49,843,047 5,207,602 39,820,145 4,160,409

16 6,872,698,327 718,059,521  7,288,818,793 761,535,787

181/286



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UFJ S.A.
2019 12 31
2019 2018
17,31.1 528,585 55,227 541,339 56,559
528,585 55,227 541,339 56,559

20 80,843,518,883  8,446,530,853 92,427,954,484 9,656,872,684
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UFJ S.A.
2019 12 31

2019 2018
102,750,017 10,735,322 81,824,073 8,548,979
9,159,885 957,025 5,448,991 569,311
45,637,424 4,768,198 31,789,988 3,321,418
(54,594,603)  (5,704,044)  (40,218,579)  (4,202,037)
(18,415,271)  (1,924,028)  (12,070,732)  (1,261,150)
(511,746) (53,467) (392,542) (41,013)
0 0 92 10
0 0 92 10
21 135,532,835 14,160,471 115,660,720 12,084,232
(68,018,470)  (7,106,570)  56,930,365)  (5,948,085)
3,671,743 383,624 4,336,416 453,069
22 1,439,792 150,429 4,322,262 451,590
(50,532,935)  (5,279,681)  (51,755,210)  (5,407,384)
24,25  (19,811,185)  (2,069,873)  (20,839,657)  (2,177,327)
(16,226,776)  (1,695,374)  (16,818,051)  (1,757,150)
(2,550,297) (266,455)  (2,632,035) (274,995)
(1,580,110) (165,090)  (1,596,915) (166,846)
26,30  (30,721,750)  (3,209,808)  (30,915,553)  (3,230,057)
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(1,515,702) (158, 361) (1,767,494) (184,668)
23 (624,491) (65,247) (605,778) (63,292)
11,27.1  (16,495,317)  (1,723,431)  (13.169,369) (1,375,936)

51,612,869 5,392,513 41,696,768 4,356,478
27.2  (1,769,822) (184,911) (1,876,623) (196,070)
49,843,047 5,207,602 39,820,145 4,160,409
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UFJ S.A.

2019 12 31

1.1.
UFJ S.A.
1974 11
1996

2005 10

2006

2007
70 30

2008 28 49,080
1,817,968.52 37,117,968.52
92.25
63.72 28.53
2014
12-13
1993
907648
2016
UFJ S.A.
2017 31 UFJ
S.A. 100

1.2.
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2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

2018

2019

186/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1997 12 16
1.25
2019 12 31 2018

2.7.

2.5

2.8.

10

2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

2.13.

2.14.
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2019 2018
541,421,000 543,400,000
687,000,000 679,000,000

1,228,421,000 1,222,400,000

2,783 2018 2,834
3,096,039 336,220 (135,335) (55,927) 3,240,997 2,414,061 826,936
739,476 198,135 (134,010) (13,358) 790,243 509,876 280,367
2,356,563 138,085 (1,325) (42,569) 2,450,754 1,904,185 546,569

19,183,189 1,016,151 (14,891)  (B11,385) 19,873,064 17,148,635 2,724,429
17,237,750 1,016,151 (14,891)  (311,385) 17,927,625 15,203,196 2,724,429

1,945,439 0 0 0 1,945,439 1,945,439 0

22,279,228 1,352,371 (150,226)  (367,312) 23,114,061 19,562,696 3,551,365
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2019 2018

14,177,184 15,591,714

1,713,597 1,076,761

183,794 921,843

1,566,075 2,124,415

12,792,274 9,573,008

5,053,137 5,836,414

543,439 483,831

171,171 162,315

324,052 664,574

572,304 481,264

751 765

435,944 62,649

37,533,722 36,979,553

2019 12 31 5,141,994,595 2018
5,393,986,107
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
1,400,000
2019 2018
649,292 618,902
582,826 1,587,914

1,232,118 2,206,816
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2019 12 31

12

13
2019 12 31
49,080

2.2

2019 12 31

187,117,966
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2019 2018
8,943,522 6,908,708
4,769,237 3,224,725
1,612,014 3,347,939

58,141 308,226

14,380,755 1,717,819
114,097 122,543
63,797 74,389
29,941,563 15,704,349
1987 16
1983 23

2019 2018
1,408,538 1,611,952
1,408,538 1,611,952

5,002,575
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2019 5,404,737 152,787,012 3,259
2018 12 31 0 0 39,820,145
(57,409)
2019 9,981,000 (9,981,000)
2013 (3,101,000) 3,101,000
30,894,000 (30,894,000)
1,991,008 0 (1,991,008)
2019 12 31 7,395,745 190,561,012 988
10
10
2019 12 31 29,324,927 2018 22,444,927
2019 25 9,981,000 2019
2013 3,101,000
2019 12 31
2019
2014 -2015 3,019,136
2016 3,348,440
2017 4,276,351
2018 8,700,000
2019 9,981,000

2019 12 31 29,324,927
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2019 12 31

2019 12 31

575 2013

2019 12 31

16
2019 12 31
3,951,265,679

17
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2019 2018
3,313,250,489 3,314,382,591
25,391,063 24,033,836
3,338,641,552 3,338,416,427
2019 2018
1,121,324,163 1,787,952,744
790,938,178 1,001,503,360
5,272,305 5,654,686
1,917,534,646 2,795,110,790
24
2013 26
3,383,066,716
2019

3,311,881,103
14,190,435
56,995,178

3,383,066,716

5,161,213,531

2019

528,585

2018

541,339

2018
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18
2019 2018
5,226,846 6,499,120
19
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
20
21
2019 2018
22,712,248 21,506,351
99,635,836 80,663,753
11,022,939 11,772,959
700,533 921,843
1,461,279 795,814

135,532,835 115,660,720
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22
2019 2018
2013 2014 2015 2017 0 2,530,324
663,382 1,151,445
478,260 414,867
78,621 70,598
219,529 155,028
1,439,792 4,322,262
23
2019 2018
170,811 345,919
325,550 220,859
106,282 7,836
21,848 31,164
624,491 605,778
24
2019 2018
30 29
83 71
56 67
169 167
25
2019 2018
5,606,190 5,084,843
821,298 875,409
4,784,892 4,209,434

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
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26
2019 2018
1,286,243 1,372,967
1,420,213 1,264,913
3,049,059 2,847,608
3,356,649 3,550,904
1,207,833 1,141,991
5,099,944 4,997,353
2,770,636 2,847,497
11,351,403 11,679,286
393,275 363,250
172,054 203,378
614,441 646,406
30,721,750 30,915,553
2019 29
27
27.1.
2019 2018
12,027,260 9,760,432
4,468,057 3,408,937
16,495,317 13,169,369
27.2.
2019 2018
1,710,089 1,819,754
59,733 56,869
1,769,822 1,876,623
28
2019 12 31
100
33 100-
8212

100
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100,000

100,000

107 (1)

2024
179 (1)
0.8
2016
0.8
0.8
2019 12 31
) 2018 1,686,439

30

2014 49

2018

1,988,649
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2014 59
2015 12 18
20,000
12
2024
2015
2018
180 (1)
1,924,193 (2,144,032
2019 2018
273,905 329,206
138,827 139,547
30,103 39,220

442,835 507,973
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2019 2019 12 31
31
31.1.
2019 12 31

3,122,139,702 0 0 0 3,122,139,702
3,021,799,645 687,000,000 0 0 3,708,799,645
670,745 0 0 0 670,745
0 0 0 2,783 2,783
6,144,610,092 687,000,000 0 2,783 6,831,612,875
1,156,999,949 0 0 0 1,156,999,949
5,228,117,398 0 0 0 5,228,117,398
6,385,117,347 0 0 0 6,385,117,347
528,585 0 0 0 528,585
528,585 0 0 0 528,585
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2018 12 31

3,714,129,527 0 0 3,714,129,527
2,854,550,709 679,000,000 0 3,533,550,709
372,880 0 0 372,880

0 0 2,834 2,834
6,569,053,116 679,000,000 2,834  7,248,055,950
1,794,570,343 0 0 1,794,570,343
5,073,055,610 0 0 5,073,055,610
6,867,625,953 0 0 6,867,625,953
541,339 0 0 541,339
541,339 0 0 541,339
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3,932,042,624 5,842,135 0 3,937,884,759 26,049,631

1,004,949,710 0 0 1,004,949,710 2,872,627

4,936,992,334 5,842,135 0 4,942,834,469 28,922,258

3,952,576,741 5,799,199 0 3,958,375,940 26,036,732

2,408,687,339 0 0 2,408,687,339 11,231,097

6,361,264,080 5,799,199 0 6,367,063,279 37,267,829
2019 12 31 2019 12 31
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3,271,219,543 3,321,504 0 3,274,541,047 77,666,609

1,394,522,057 0 1,394,522,057 2,067,411

4,665,741,600 3,321,504 0 4,669,063,104 79,734,020

3,303,598,230 3,270,027 0 3,306,868,257 76,992,277

854,553,985 0 0 854,553,985 2,708,455

4,158,152,215 3,270,027 0 4,161,422,242 79,700,732
2018 12 31 2018 12 31
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31.3.
2019 12 31
2019 2018
3,122,139,702 3,714,129,527
3,122,139,702 3,714,129,527
3,708,799,645 3,533,550,709
135,123,430 180,725,105
894,909,307 722,872,089
2,674,535,568 2,605,130,138
1,183,449 5,033,138
3,047,891 19,790,239
670,745 372,880
315,164 50,865
351,379 318,231
0 4
4,202 3,780
2,783 2,834
2,783 2,834
6,831,612,875 7,248,055,950
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31.4.
2019 12 31
2019 2019
3,136,956,781 17,460,853
752,436,735 8,314,206
48,491,243 274,572
1,004,949,710 2,872,627
4,942,834 ,469 28,922,258
2018 12 31
2018 2018
3,160,915,130 75,043,013
113,600,617 2,623,478
25,301 118
1,394,522,057 2,067,411
4,669,063,105 79,734,020
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
BALANCE SHEET
Decamber 31, 2019

{in LS0)
ASSETS

Notes 2018 2018
Cash, balances with central banks
and post office banks 3.1, 31.3 3122.133.702 3. T14.120.52T
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3,15 311, 21.3. 3.708.799.645 3.533.550.709
a) repayable on demand 2480378 645 2.311.150.708
b) other loans and advances 1.228.421 000 1,222 400,000
Loans and advances to customers ) I T . X 670.745 ar2.880
Shares and other varable-yield securities 4,311,313 2.783 283
Fixed Assets 5 3.551.365 3.783.033
Other assets 355 257
Prepayments and accrued income 6 15 37533722 36,979,552
TOTAL ASSETS T 6.872.6598.327 7.288.818.733

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.

=11 -
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MITSLUEBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
BALANCE SHEET
Diecember 31, 2019
{in LSO
- continued -

LIABILITIES

Motes 2019 208
Amounts owed to credit institutions 18,311, 1,156.999,543 1.794,.570.343
a) repayable on demand 1.158 595549 1.565.940.343
b) with agreed maturity dates 0 Z28.630.000
Amounts owed 1o customers 8, 15,311, 5228.117.398 5.073.055.610
a) repayable on demand 5228 117.388 5.071.655.610
b) with agreed maturity dates o 1.400.000
Other liabilities E:] 1.232.118 2206816
Accruals and deferred income 10,15 29.941.583 15.704.349
Provisions 21.488.541 18.148.556
a) provisions for tacation 11 20080003 16.536.604
b) other provisions 12 1.408.538 1.611.952
Subscribed capital 13 1871175966 187.117.966
Reserves 14 197.956.757 158.191.748
Result brought ferward 14 588 3.259
Profit for the financial year 49,843,047 38,820,145
TOTAL LIABILITIES 18 7.28B.818.793

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.
-12-
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MITSLUEBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Decamber 31, 2019

{in LSO
Motes 2018 2M8
Contingent liabilities 17, 31.1. 528.585 541.338
of which:
guarantees and assets pledged as
collateral secunty 520.585 541,338
Fiduclary operations 20 B80.843.518.883 92.427.954.484

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.
- 13-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Year ended December 31, 2019
{in LSO
Motes 2019 218
Interest receivable and similar income 102.750.47 81.824.073
of which:
=  Megative interast received on deposits 9,159 885 5 448 981
- Interest Gain from foreign currency swap 45627424 31.780.988
Interest payable and similar charges (54.554.603) (40.218.579)
af which:
= Megative interest paid on lans and advances (18.415.271) (12.070.732)
= Interest Loss from foreign cumrency swap (511.748) (392 .542)
Income from securities o 92
Income from shares and other variable yield securities o a2
Commission receivable 21 135,532 835 115.660.720
Commission payable (68.018.470) (56.930.355)
Net profit on fimancial operations 3.6T1.743 4.336416
Cther operating income 22 1.438.792 4,322 262
General administrative expenses (50.532.935) (51.755.210)
a) staff costs 24,25 {18.811.185) (20.839.65T)
of which:
wages and salanes {18.226.778) {16.818.051)
social security costs (2.550.297) (2:632.035)
af which;
- social security costs relating to pensions (1.5800110) (1.596.915)
b) other administrative expenses 26, 30 (30.721.750) (30.915.553)
Value adjustments in respect of tangible {1.515.702) (1.767.454)
and intangible assets
Other operating charges 23 (624.491) (605.778)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 11, 27.1. (16.495.317) (13.169,369)
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 51.5612.869 41.695.768
Other taxes not shown under the preceding items vz (1.765.822) (1.876.623)
Prefit for the financial year 49.843.047 39,820,145

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.
=15
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decamber 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

1.1,

Eorporate matters

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LLUXEMBOURSG) S A, (the "Bank®) was incorporated in
Luxembourg on April 11, 1874 as a sociéld anonyme.

On April 1, 1986, the Parent Bank, The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd., merged with The Mitsubishi Bank, Limited to form
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi Ltd., and Bank of Tokyo (Luxembourg) S A, changed its name to Bank of
Tokya-Mitsubishi (Luxembourg) S A

On Ootober 1, 2005, the indirect shareholder, Mitsubashi Tokyo Financial Group, Ine. (MTFG) merged with UFJ
Holdings, Inc. (UFJ) and formed a new financial group, Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (MUFG).

On January 1, 2008, the Parent Bank, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd. merged with UFJ Bank Limited to
form T he Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd,, and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi (Luxembourg) S A changed its
name to Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ (Luxembourg) S 4.

On April 2, 2007, the Bank became a jointly capitalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corparation by 70% and Bank of Tokye-Mitsubishi UF.J Ltd, by 30%, which are under the same holding
campany Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (MUFG). Consequently, Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ
{Luxembourg) S A, changed its name to MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody S.A, (MUGC),

On April 28, 2008, MITSUEBISHI UFJ Global Custody 5 A, has issued 49,080 new shares and the capital of the
Bank has been increased by USD 1,817 968,52 The total subscribed share capital is currently set at

USD 37 117.958.52. The two major shareholders of the Bank hold 92 25% of the cap®al, Mitsubishi UFJ Trust
and Banking Corporation by 63,72% and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Lid. by 28,53%.

On August 7, 2014, MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody S.A. has established an external branch located at
Ormande House, 1213 lower Lesson Street, Dublin 2, Ireland. Mitsubishi UFJ) Glabal Custedy S A, Dublin
Branch is registered as credit institution pursuant to UE Regulation, 1993, under the number 807548

A7
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2015
- continued -

On May 1, 2016, MITSUBISHI UFJ Glabal Custody 5 A. has changed its name to MITSUBISHI LIFJ INVESTOR
SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S A (MIBL)

On May 31, 2017, Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation obtained 100% of the voting shares of Mitsubishi
UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) S.A.

The members of the Board of Directors are Senigr Executves of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corparation Group
and Independent Directors. The business policy and valuation principles, unless prescribed by the legal requirements

existing in Luxembourg, are determined and monitored by the Beard of Directors in accordance with those applied in
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group.

HMature of business

The obgect of the Bank is the undertaking for its own account, as well as for the account of third parties ether within or

outside the Grand-Duchy of Luxembaourg, of any banking or financial operations, as well as all other operations,

whether industrial or commercial or in real estate, which directly or indirectly relate to the main object described above.

More specifically, the Bank concentrates its activibies on investment management senvices.

A significant velume of the Bank's transactions ks concluded directly or indirectly with companies of Mitsubishi UFJ

Financial Group,

Annual accounts

The Bank prepares its annual accounts in US Dollars (USD), the currency in which the capital is expressed. The Bank's
accounting year coincides with the calendar year.

MOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Bank prepares its annual accounts under the historical cost principle in accordance with the laws and regulabons
in foree in the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg and on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the banking
sector in the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2015
- continued -

In ehserving these, the follewing significant accounting pelicies are applied.

Assets and llabilties are stated in the balance sheet on the date the amounts concerned become cleared funds, that s,
on their date of effective transfer.

Foreign nei

The Bank maintains a muli-cumency accounting system which records all transactions in the currency or currencies of

the transaction, on the day an which the contract is concluded

Assets and liabilties are converted into LISD at the spot exchange rates applicable at the balance sheet date, Bath
realsed and unrealised profits and losses arising on revaluation are accounted for in the profit and loss account for the
year, except for those resulting from items specifically covered by a forward foreign exchange confract (swap and
hedging forward foreign exchange contract) which are recorded at historical exchange rates.

Revenues and expenses in foreign curmencies are translated into USD daily at the prevailing exchange rates.

At the yvear-end, all unsettled forward transactions are translated into USD at the forward rate prevailing on the Balance
Sheet date for the remaining maturities,

Results on unsettied forward transactions linked to spot transactions and on swap transactions are accrued at the
balance shest date. |n case of unfealised results on position covered by foreign exchange Swap, these are neutralized
at year end.

Financial in n rivativ

The Bank’s commitments deriving from the derivatives financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, financial futures and options are recorded on the transaction date ameng the off balance sheet items.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2015
- continued -

At the year-end, where necessary, a provision is set up in respect of indwidual unrealised losses resulting from the
revaluation of the Bank's commitments at market value. There is no provision for unrealized losses on forward deals
recorded for the year 2019 (2018 USD ml).

Mo provision i5 set up in these cases wherne a financial instrument clearly covers an asset or a liability and economas

unity is established or where a financial instrument s hedged by a reversa transaction so that no cpen position exists.

It is the Bank's policy to establish specific value adjustments in respect of doubtful and irrecoverable debts, as deemed
approphiate by the Board of Directars,

Value adjustrnents, if any, are deducted from the assets to which they relate,

The value adjustments for possible losses on loans and advances, if any, are deducted from the assets to which they
rélate.

wion b 1l
In accordance with the Luxembouwrg i legislation, the Bank can establish a lump-surm provision fof fisk exposures, as
defined in the legislation governing prudential supervision of banks. The purpose of the provision is to take account of
risks which are Bkely to crystallise but which have not yvet been identified as at the date of preparation of the annual

accounts.

Pursuant to the Instructions issued by the Directewr des Contributions on December 18, 1987, this provision should be
made before taxation and shoukd not exceed 1,25% of the Bank's risk exposures,

The Bank has not constituted any provision as of December 31, 2018 (2018: USD 0)
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) S A
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

Iransferable securdies
Transherable securdies are recorded initially at thesr purchase prnce. The average cost method 15 used for initial

recognition, Value adjustments, calculated as described in note 2 5. or arising from a diminution of value, are deducted

fram the account balance

Tangible and ntangible asests

Tangible and intangible assets are valued at purchase price. The value of tangible and intangible fed assets with
lemited useful economic lwes is reduced by value adjustments calculated to write off the value of such assets
systematically over their useful economic lives. as follows

+  Hardware equipment 4 years,

* Software: 4 years and 3 years,

s Other intangible assets: § years,

& (Other tangible assets: 10 years,

¢ Goodwill 5 years.

hares in affili n kir

At the Balance Sheet date, shares in affiliated undertakings held as financial fixed assets are stated at the lower of cost

of market value

Taxes

Taxes are accounted for on an accruals basis m the accounts af the year @ which they relate. Provisian for taxation
comesponds to the difference between the estimated provisions created by the Bank and the advance payments for the

financial years for which no final tax assessment natices have been receved yet

This asset itermn inchudes expenditure incurred during the financial year but relating to a subsequent financial year

e
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 21, 2015
- continued -

Accryals and deferred income

This liability tem includes income received during the financial year but relating to a subsequent financial year.

Brovisigns

Pravigions are imended to cover losses or debts the nature of which i clearly defined and which, at the date of the
balance sheet are either likely to be incurred or certain to be incurred but uncertain as to thesr amount or as to the date
on which they will arise.

The Bank's main streams of revenue are comprisad of interests and commissons income,. The Bank earns fee and
commission income from a wade range of services it provides to its customerns.

Revenue is generally recognized whean the related services are performed or recognized over the period that the
services ane provided.

MOTE 3 - LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Loans and advances to credit institutions other than those repayable on demand may be analysed according to their
refr@ining maturity as follows:

20119 2018

UsD UsD

Mot mare than three months 241.421.000 S43.400.000
Mare than three months but less than one year BA7.000.000 &76.000.000
1.2:28.421.000 1,222 400.000

NOTE 4 - SHARES AND OTHER VARIABLE YIELD SECURITIES

Transferable securities shown under the item "Shares and other variable yield securities® consist entirely of unlisted

securities for USD 2,763 (2018 2.834)
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE & - PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME

The Bank's prepayments and accrued income may be analysed as follows:

2019 2018

UsD usD

Accrued interest incame 14177184 15.581.714
Accrued Interest income on swaps 1.713597 1,078,761
Commission from the Management Company 183,794 921.643
Commission on fiduciary operations 1.586.075 2124415
Commission on global custedy 12792274 9573008
Commission on investment funds 5.053.137 5.836.414
Other accrued mecome 543 430 453511
Other Commissions 1711471 162,315
Other prepayments 324052 684 574
Frepaid general expenses 572 304 481,264
Prepaid inoarme taxes 75 765
VAT recoverable 435 44 §2.648
37 533732 36,079 553

HOTE 7 - FOREIGH CURRENCY ASSETS

At December 31, 2019, the aggregate amount of the Bank's assets denominated in foreign currencies,

translated into USD, s USD 5,141 994,585 (2018 USD 5,393 966.107).

NOTEB - AMOUNTS OWED TO CUSTOMERS

As at December 31, 2019, there is no debts cther than those repayable on demand owed to customers.
{as at December 31, 2018 debts other than repayable on demand amounted to LISD 1,400,000

.24
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE 9 - OTHER LIABILITIES

The Bank's other liabilities may be analysed as follows:

2019 2018
uso usD
Preferential crediors 548.282 618902
Sundry creditors S82.526 1.587.914
1232118 2206816
NOTE 10 - ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME
The Bank's accruals and deferred income may be analysed as follows:
219 2018
UusD UsD
Acerued commission 8943 522 6.908. 708
Accrued general expenses 4 760 23T 3224725
Accrued mberest expenses 1.612.014 3347938
Deferred income related to custody fees 58.141 308 226
MNeutralzation of foreign exchange results on postion covered
by foreign exchange swap (note 2.2.) 14 380.755 1.717.818
Other accreed expenses 114,067 122,543
Other suspensa receipts (*) 63.797 74,388
20,041,563 15,704,349

{*) Transitory account for suspense receipts payable after the 311272019 to the related beneficiary.

L5
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE 11 - TAXATION - EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE: DEFERRED TAXATION

Under Luxembourg fiscal reguiations, the Bank's fiscal Balance Sheet and #s results of operations are required
to be expressed in Euro. The eamings of the Bank as determined for fiscal purposes can differ substantially
from earnings reported for accounting purposes as a result of unrealised profits or lesses on the translation of
the Bank's equity into Euro equivalents for fiscal purposes.

In accordance with the Law of July 16, 1987 (as modified), which allows the fiscal neutralisation of translaton
gains on exchange on the investment of equity in banks, unrealised gains which may be caused by a rise in the
USD against the Euro can, under normal arcumstances, be neutralised to the extent of the amount that
exceeds the unrealised translation losses previously carned forward

In accordance with the Law of July 23, 1883, however, which allows the fiscal neutralisation of translation gains
on exchange on the investment of equity in banks, future unrealised gains which may be caused by a rise in the
US dollar against the Eurg can, under normal circumstances, only be neutrakised to the extent of the amount

that exceeds the unrealised translation losses previously carned forward.

As at December 31, 2019, there are no deferred tax.

HOTE 12 - OTHER PROVISIONS

The Bank's other provisions are made of provision for staff remuneration.

2019 2018

UsD usD

Prowision for staff remuneration 1.408 538 1.611.8952
1.408 538 1,811,952

NOTE 13 - SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2019, the Bank's subscribed and fully paid up capital amounts to USD 187,117 986 for
5,002,575 shares of Class A and 49,080 shares of Class B
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE 14 - MOVEMENTS IN RESERVES AND RESULT BROUGHT FORWARD

Legal Other Result brought
resere reserves forsard
uso usoD usD
Balance at January 1, 2019 5404 73T 152.787.012 3259
Profit fof the yvear ended December 31, 2018 0 ] 29820145
Approphiaton of profit
- Dividends paid to shareholders {57.408)
- Transfer to reserves for Met Worth Tax 2019 9.881.000 (2.981.000)
= Transfer from Reserve for Net Warth Tax
213 (3.101.000) 3.101.000
- Allecation 1o Free reserve 30.804.000 (30.594.000)
- Allecaton to Legal reserve 1.881.008 ] {1.991_008)
Balance at Decembbar 31, 2019 T7.385. 745 190.561.012 88

Under Luxembourg law, the Bank must appropriate to a legal reserve an amount equivalent to at least 5% of the
annual net profit until such reserve is equal to 10% of the share capital This appropriation is made in the
followang year. Destribution of the legal reserve is restricted. This requirement s satisfied as the Bank has
reached 10% of the issued subscribed capital

Based on the Luxembourg tax law, the Bank has elected to get a tax credit for all or part of the net worth tax due
for that year. This tax credit is however, limited to the amount of the corporate income tax due for the previous
year before the imputation of any tax credits, In order to profit from this credit, the Bank must commit itself to
post before the end of the subsequent year an amount equal to five times the net worth tax cred? to a special
resanve, which has to be maintained for a period of five years.

As of December 31, 2019, the special reserve for net worth tax is included in the Bank's other reserve for a total
amount of USD 28324 927 (2018: USD 22 444 527).

As resclved in the Annual General Meeting dated March 25, 2019, the Bank has allocated an amount of
USD 9.581.000 to special reserve for Net Worth Tax 2019 and reversed the available special resarve for Net
Worth Taw constituted in 2013 which amounted o USD 3.101.000.

The accurulated balance of special reserve for Net Worth Taxes states as follows as at December 31, 2019,

L7
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -
209
Reserve for Net
Worth Tax
Years usD
2014 - 2015 3.M9.136
2016 3348440
217 4,276,351
2018 8.700.000
209 5.651.000
Balance at December 31, 2019 28324 927

NOTE 15 - RELATED PARTY BALANCES

As at December 31, 2019, the follvwing balances with related parties are cutstanding:

ASSETS
2019 2018
UsD UsD
Loans and advances to credit institutions. 3313.250. 488 3314 382551
Prepayments and accrued income 25.391.063 24,033,838
3338 641,552 3338 416,427
LIABILITIES
2019 2018
usD UsD
Amaunts owed to credit institutions 1121324163 1.787.952 744
Amounts owed to custormers TH0. 938178 1.001 503360
Accruals and deferred income 5.272.305 5654 686
1.917.524 646 2.785110.790

.28
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

The Bank has not entered into any significant transactions with related parties as defined in International
Accounting Stendards 24 “Related Party Disclosures”™ which were not made on terms equivalent to those that
prevail in arm's length transactions as of December 31, 2019 and for the year then ended.

At the request of the Bank, the CS5F has granted a total exemption for the exposures towards the group
{Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group) in the calculation of large exposure imits, in accordance with the Regulation
{EV) Mo 5T5/2013 of June 26, 2013 (Part IV).

As at December 31, 2019, the amount towards the group falling under this exemption amounts to
USD 3.383.086.716 and can be analysed as follows:

2019
uso

Loans and advances to credit institutions 331881103
Prepayrments and aserued income 14,180 435
Foreign exchange transactions (Market Risk method) 55995178

3383086716

NOTE 16 - FOREIGN CURRENCY LIABILITIES
At December 31, 2019, the aggregate amounts of labiltes denominated in foreign currencies translated info

USD is USD 5161.213.531 (20158 USD 3.931.265.679).

NOTE 1T - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Bank's contingent kabiities may be analysed as follows:

2019 2018

UsD usD

Counter-guarantees ssued 528585 541.338
| I ———————

As at the year-end, there were no related party balances,

.6,
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS

The Bank has entered into certaln commitments which are not disclosed neither in the Balance Sheet nof in the
Off Balance Sheet ltems, but which are significant for the purposes of assessing the financial situation of the
Bank Details of such commitments are as follows:

205 a8
usD usD
Commitments in respect of fixed rental payments contracted on
buildings 5, 226846 G.4859.120

As at the year-end, there are no related party bakanges

HNOTE 15 - OPERATIONS LINKED TO CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATES, INTEREST RATES AND OTHER MARKET

RATES

The follcwing types of forward transactions are outstanding as at Decermnber 31, 2019 and 2018:

Operations linked to currency exchange rates

- Forward exchange transactions (swaps. outrights).

Operatons linked to thie foreign currency exchange rates are mada 1o a large extent fof the purposes of

covering the existing positions.

NOTE 20 - INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND UNDERWRITING FUNCTIONS

Management and agency services provided by the Bank include:

- Custody and administration of transferable securities;
- Fidusiary represantatons,

- Agency functions;

= Partfalio management and advice,
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5.A

HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decamber 31, 2015
- continued -
NOTE 21 - COMMISSIONS RECEIVABLE

2019 2018

UsD UsD

Fees on Investment Funds Z2T12.248 21,508 351
Fees on Global custody from Institutional custamers 99 635836 80 663,753
Fees on Fiduciary transactions 11022 830 1. 772950
Fees on Services to Management Company 700.533 921.842
Other fees and commissions 1.481.278 TH5.814
135.532.835 115,660,720

e —— I ——

Commissions recevable consist of the following;

Fees on Investment Funds consist of fees and commissions charged to Investment Funds for custody senvices,
central admanistration, depositary and other services. The fees are calculated on the bass of the value of net
assets of the funds under administration.

Fees on Global custody from Institutional customers consist of fees and commissions charged to institutional
custorners for global custady services including securities trade management, settlerment, corporate actions,
income collection and proxy voting. The fees are calkculated on the basis of the assets held under custody and
the number of transactions.

Fees on Fiduclary transactiens consist of fees and commissions eamed on fiduciary assets including custody
transactions, cash management and fiduciary notes issuance. The fees are calculated on the basis of the

assets held under management and the number of transactions.

Fees on Services to Management Company include fees covering functional expenditures and fees for support

sarvices in accordance with the Service Level Agreement

Other fees and commissions include vanous fees such as ksting agent fees, guarantee fees, banking services
fees and fund order desk services fees,

.31,
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A

NHOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -
NOTE 22 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2018 2018
usD uso
Adjustment of Income taxes 2013-2014-2015-2017 o 2530324
Adjustment for commission previous years B63.352 1.151.445
Inceme fram the adjustment of genaral expenses
regarding prewious years 478 260 414 BET
Sub-Rental Fee received from the Management
Company (Service level agreement) Ta621 70,588
Other operating income 219.529 155.028
1.438.792 4,322 262
I — I —
NOTE 23 - OTHER QPERATING CHARGES
2019 2018
usoD usoD
Charges from the adjustrient of general
axpenses regarding previous years 170,811 345819
Commission on Hevious years 325.550 220,859
Interest on previous years 106,282 7836
Others operating losses 21.848 31.164
524.491 805.778

.32,
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE 24 - STAFF NUMBERS

The average number ar persons employed dunng the financial year by the Bank is as follows:

2013 me

Humber Number

Senwor managemsent =0 29

Middle management 83 ™
Employees i) __ &7
169 167

HOTE 25 - MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

The Bank has granted emoluments in respect of the financial year to the members of the managerial body of the

Bank by reason of thew responsibilites as follaws:

2019 2018

UsD UsD

Senwor management 5.606.190 5084 843
Of which variable remuneration 821.298 875409

Of which fix remuneration 4,784,892 4,200,434

During the financial year, no pension commitments to the members of the Board of Directors and General

Management were made.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Bank did not grant any advances and credits to the members of the
Board of Directors and General Management
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE 26 - OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2019 208

UsD UsD

Data charges 1.285.243 1.372 867
Mairtenance 142013 1264913
Membership fees 3.048.038 2.847 608
Professional fees 3,356,649 3.550.904
Rent and related expenses 1207 833 1,141,999
Service contracts 5.050.044 4.967 353
Service fee 2.770.636 2.547 497
System cost 11.351.402 11.679.286
Telecommunicabon expanses 383273 363.250
Travelling, moving, business trips 172.054 203,378
Other expenses 614,441 645,406
30.721.750 20.915.553

The increase of the costs for Memberships is due to the increase of the fees paid to Single Resolution Funds
during the year 2019 (Mote 29)

NOTE 27 - TAX

271, Iaxon profiton ordinary activities

2019 018

UsD usD

Corporate Income Tax 12027 280 8,780 432
Municipal Business Tax 4.468.057 3408937
16,485,317 13.168.368
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

2015 208

uUsD usp

VAT 1.710.088 1.519.754
Other taxes 50,733 55,665
1768522 1876623

NOTE 28 - PARENT UNDERTAKING

As of December 31, 2019, the Bank is a jpintly capitalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi UF.J Trust and Banking
Corporation by 100 %, which are under the holding company Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (MUFG), which is
incorporated under the laws of Japan and whose registered office is in Tokyo

The annual accounts of the Bank are included in the consolidated accounts of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corparabon, with Registered Financial Institubien number 33 at Kanto Local Finance Bureau Japan and
registered address 4-5, Marunouchi 1-Chome, Chiyoda-Ku, Tokyo 100-3212, Japan,

The consolidated accounts of the holding company Mitsubishi UF.J Financial Group (MUFG) may be cbtained
from the head office at 7-1, Marunouchi 22Chome, Chiyeda-Ku, Tokye 100, Japan.

HOTE 25 - DEPOSIT GUARANTEE SCHEME

The law related to the resolution, recrganisation and winding-up measures of credit institutions and certain
irvestrient firms and on depost guarantes and investor compensation schemes (the “Law”), transposing into
Luxembourgish law the directive 201 4/S%EL establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit
instistions and investment firms and the directive 2014/45EU related to deposit guarantee and investor

compensation schemes, was passed on December 18, 2015,
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

The deposit guarantes scheme ("Fonds de garantie des dépdls Luxembourg™ (FGOL)) and the investor
compensalion system ("Systéme d'indemnisation des investisseurs Luxembouwrg” {SIIL)) cover eligible
deposits of each depositar up to an amount of EUR 100,000 and investments up to an ameunt of EUR 20.000.
The Law also provides that deposits resulting from specific transactions or fulfilling a specific socal or other
purpose are covered for an amount above ELR 100,000 for a period of 12 months,

Cradit instiutions conlfibute on an annual basis to the Luxembourg banking resolution fund ("Fands de
resolution Luxembourg” (FRL}), respectively to the FGDL.

The funded amount of the FRL shall reach by the end of 2024 at least 1% of covered deposits, as defined in
article 107(1) of the Law, of all authorized credit institutions in all participating Member States. This amount will
be collected dunng the years 2015 to 2024,

The target level of funding of the FGOL s et at 0.8% of covered deposits, as defined in article 179(1) of the
Law, of the relevant credit institubions and 1% to be reached by the end of 2015 throwgh annual contributions.
This amount will be collected during the years 2016 to 2018. When the level of 0,8% is reached, the
Luxembourgish credit instfutions are 1o continue to contribute for & additional years in order to constitute an
addibonal safety buffer of 0.8% of covered deposits as defined in article 180(1) of the Law.

For the year end December 31, 2019, the Bank's annual contribution for FRL amounted to EUR 1.924.193

{USD 2144 032). (2018 : EUR 1.586.439 / USD 1.988 645).
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- continued -

NOTE 30 - AUDIT FEES

During the financial year, the Bank has been charged by the Audit firm and its entire network with the following

fees (excluding VAT):

2019 2018

UsD uUsD

Audit fees 273905 329,206
Other assurance services 138 827 139,547
Tax Advisory fees 30103 39.220
442,835 SO7 973

The other assurance services provided during the financial year by the entire nebwork of the Audit firm included
the following Service:

- ISAE 3402/ S0C 1 Type || Report for the pencd from Januwary 1, 2019 to December 31, 2018,

The Tax Advisory services provided dunng the financial year by the entire netwark of the Audit firm included the
following services:

- Preparation of tax returns;
- Preparation of VAT returns

.37,
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMNKING (LUXEMEOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- cantinued -

Information an credit risk on primary non-trading financial ingtrurments

As at December 31, 2019, the Bank is exposed to the following credit risk on primary non-trading financial
instrurments:

2019 2018
Carrying amount Carrying amaount
in UsSD in USD
FINAMCIAL ASSETS

By instrument class and gecgraphic location
Cash, balances with the BCL 3422138702 3714125 527
EU mambar countrios 3.122.139.702 3.714.128.527
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3. TOB.T39.645 3.533.550.T09
EU member countries 135.123.430 180.725.105
North & Central America 894.908.307 722872089
Asig 2.674.535.568 2.605.130.138
Eurapa, non-EU member countrias 1.183.449 5033138
Australia and New Zealand 2047891 19.780.239
Loans and advances to customers 670.745 72880
EU member countries 315.164 50.865
North & Central America 351,379 118.231
Asia a 4
Europa, nan-EU member countries 4,202 3780
Shares and other variable yield securities 2.783 2834
EU member countries 2.783 2.834
Total 6.831.612.875 T.248.055.950

. 42-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMNKING (LUXEMEOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- cantinued -

34 Information on dervative non:-trading financial instruments

As at December 31, 20185, the Bank is exposed to the follewing credit risk on derivatives non-trading financial
instrurnants

2019 2019
Motionalipayable Risk equivalent
amount amount
in USD in USD
FINAMCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Foreign exchange transactions
Forwards
EU mamber countries J.1368.956.7687 17.460.8563
Amevica T52.436.735 8.314.208
Azig 48.491.243 274.572
Swaps
EU member countries 1.004.848.710 2872627
Total 4,942 834469 28,922.258

- 43-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMNKING (LUXEMEOURG) S.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2019
- cantinued -

As at December 31, 2018, the Bank is exposed to the follewing credit risk on derivatives non-trading financial
instrurments:

2018 2018
Motional/payable Risk equivalent
amount amount
in USD in USD
FIMAMCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geocgraphic location
Foreign exchange transactions
Forwards
EU mambar countrias 3.160.915.130 Fo.043.013
Amevica 113.600.617 2,623.478
Azig 26.301 118
Swaps
EU mambar countries 1.394.522.057 2.067.411
Total 4.669.063.105 75.734.020

.44 -
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1
UFJ S.A.
2020 30
010 4,337,018,208 453,131,662
020
030 2,855,171,572 298,308,326
040 1,481,846,636 154,823,337
050 27,207,999 2,842,692
060 27,207,999 2,842,692
070
080
090
096 0 0
097
098
099
100 0 0
120
130
141 2,784 291
142 2,784 291
143
144
181 3,021,982,786 315,736,761
182
183 3,021,982,786 315,736,761
240
250
260
270 5,168,539 540,009
280 5,168,539 540,009
290
300 3,009, 484 314,431
310
320 3,009,484 314,431
330 751 78
340 751 78
350
360 25,770,032 2,692,453
370
380 7,420,160,584 775,258,378
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UFJ

2020

30

S.A.

010

45,589,584

4,763,200

020

45,589,584

4,763,200

030

040

050

060

070

080

090

100

110

6,884,536,105

719,296,332

120

6,880,136,553

718,836,667

130

140

4,399,552

459,665

150

160

170

180

190

200

210

220

230

240

14,432,457

1,507,903

250

14,159,986

1,479,435

260

272,471

28,468

270

280

16,811,084

1,756,422

290

300

6,961,369,230

727,323,857
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UFJ

2020

30

S.A.

010

187,117,966

19,550,085

020

187,117,966

19,550,085

030

040

050

060

070

080

090

095

100

110

120

122

124

320

330

340

350

360

128

130

140

150

155

165

170

180

190

1,810

189

200

210

247,675,774

25,877,165

220

230

247,675,774

25,877,165

240

250

23,995,804

2,507,082
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260
270 0 0
280
290
300 458,791,354 47,934,521
310 7,420,160,584 775,258,378
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(¢
UFJ S.A.
2020 30
010 34,935,989 3,650,112
020 15,216,383 1,589,808
025
030
041
051 14,121,622 1,475,427
070
080 646,408 67,537
085 4,951,576 517,341
090 14,741,325 1,540,174
100 89,472 9,348
110
120 3,914,625 409,000
130
140 1,338 140
145 10,735,889 1,121,686
150
160 0 0
170
175
191
192
200 70,505,130 7,366,376
210 35,524,547 3,711,605
220 0 0
231
241
260
270
280 4,699,042 490,956
287
290
300
310
330
340 1,263,523 132,013
350 1,095,269 114,434
355 60,042,543 6,273,245
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360 24,876,507 2,599,097
370 10,360,793 1,082,496
380 14,515,714 1,516,602
385 ( ) 1,594,626 166,607
390 1,352,769 141,337
400 719,564 75,180
410

420 633,205 66,157
425 0 0
426

427

430 0 0
435 ( )

440

450

460 378,022 39,496
481 0 0
491 378,022 39,496
510

520 0 0
530

540

550

560

570

580

590

600

610 31,840,619 3,326,708
620 7,844,815 819,626
630 23,995,804 2,507,082
640 0 0
650

660

670 23,995,804 2,507,082
680

690 23,995,804 2,507,082
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1 Brown
Brothers Harriman Trust Company Cayman Limited

(

2020 12 200 896
(

1985

(2 MUFG S.A. MUFG Lux Management Company S.A.
(

2021 7,375,000 3,279

2021 29
126.48
(
MUFG
S.A.
2011 2011 61

G Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
(

2020 12 10 1,000 1,055 2,480
(
4 Goldman Sachs Asset

Management International

(

2019 12 1,756 8,347
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G
Goldman Sachs Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

(

2019 12 14 14 6,272
(

2021 31

(6 Yarra Funds Management Limited
(

2019 12 31 1,127,000 9,025
(
@ Goldman Sachs Asset Management

Co., Ltd.

(

2020 12 9,000
(

1996 23
2002 18
29 2007 30
2008 28

(8
(

2021 405

244/286



©

(10

11

@

Q@

€

4

G

(6

2020 12

2020

2020

MUFG

100

875 5,000

1,000

S.A.

245/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

G

(8

€

(10

(11

MUFG S.A. 100
UFJ S.A.  MUFG S.A.

246/286



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

.1 1993

1960

(a 1993

2020
(b 2020

.5 2019 12
10,857 2,886
2020
2020

247/286



2.3

2.4

2.5 2020

2.6

3.1

3.2

¢

(a
(b
(c

248/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

3.3 ®3)
©)
(a 100,000 80,000
(b
3.4
2020
€))
©)
15
©)
80,000 100,000
4.1
21
4.2
(a

¢

249/286



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

«

(e

4.3

21
4.4 2006 12 27

5.1

5.2

48

5.3
3.2
5.4 10

250/286



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

5.5
(a
(b
(c
(d
(e ) )
(A 17
(B 12
(C
5.6
5.7
5.8 24,390
30,488
8,536 36,585
42,682
8,536
6.1
(a

¢

251/286



6.2

(c

(d

(e

(f
(9

(h
(i

(k

d

(m

(a

¢

(c

(d

30

20

252/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1925



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(e

(f

(g 50

(h 150
(i
6.3

(o

1907

(c

«

(e

(f

253/286



6.4

7.1

7.2

(g

(h

(i

(k

(a

¢

(c

«

50

2016

50

254/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

500

7.3

7.4 7.3 10

7.5 7.3

10
7.6

7.7 7.9

(a
(b

(c

«

(e
(f

7.8 7.7

(a
(b
(c
(!

7.9 7.7
(a M ®) ®
* ()

(b
(c

«
(e

255/286



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

7.10 7.9

7.11

7.12  7.9(d) 7.9(e)

7.13  7.9(e)

7.14 7.13
7.15 7.9(d) 7.9(e)
(a

(b

(c

7.16  7.9(d) 7.9(e) 7.15

7.17 7.15

(a
(b 94(4)

(c

«

(e 7.9(d) 7.9(e)

7.18 7.17
7.9

7.19 7.9(a)

7.20 7.17(c)

7.21

M) ©))
* (@

256/286



8.9

(a
(b

¢

(c

«

(e

(f
(9

(h

(a

8.3

8.3

8.8

8.1

500

10

257/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

8.10



(b
(c

(d
8.10

(a
(b

«
(e
8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

(a

'

(c
8.16

(a

(b

8.17

(a
(b

(c

8.8

8.10

8.10(d)

8.10(e)

8.13

8.10(d)

(b)

8.10(d)
8.15

8.10(e)

8.10(e)

8.10(e)

8.15

8.10(d) 8.10(e)

258/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

94(4)



8.18

8.19

8.20

8.21

9.5

(a

(b

(a
(b
(c
(d

(e

8.10

9.1(a)

8.16

9.1(d)

9.1(a)

259/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

9.1(d)



9.6

10

10.1

11

11.1

11.2

11.3

(a
(b
(c
(a

(b
(c

(¢

(f

(g

(h
(i

20

260/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



(a 14(1)

14(2)

o

11.4
(a

(b

«

(e

11.5

(a

¢

11.6

12

12.1 257

12.2 247 248

261/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



13

13.

13.

13.

13.

13.

14

14.

o
10

(c

6.4(e)

11 17

7.17(d)

2008

7.17(b)

262/286

EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

8.17(b)

6.1(1)

M@

7.17(c)

6-2(9)

6.3(i)

2003



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6 20

14.7
(a 13.1

¢

(c

263/286



(d

14.8

(a

o

(c

«

14.9
(a

(b

21

264/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@@



(¢

(e

(f

(g

(A

(B

15

10

(

)

(

)

21 (6)

50

265/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

21 (4)
12
50
21 (5)
21 (4) 21 (5)



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(h

14.10
(a

'

14.11

(a

'

(d

14.12
(a @ (©)

¢ 37

Ox ) (x ) xx )

266/286



XX

XX

XX

XX

XX

(A

¢

(A

¢
(

267/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



2019 10
2020 31
2020 29

2020 30

268/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30

269/286



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100

)
¢ )HC)

270/286



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

() ) (

183 ( (

(b )

10.00
10.00
10,000
10.00

UFJ S.A.

271/286



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

21

272/286



(

)

(

)

(1)1933

(

)

)

501(a)

4.7

()

(®)

273/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)
)

cH»

&)



2020 30
2020 30
2020 30

IESBA Code

IESBA Code

274/286

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(guarantee)

2020 12 29

275/286



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent auditor®s report

To Brown Brothers Harriman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, solely in its capacity as trustee
of GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund, a sub-trust of MUGC GS Cayman Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund (the" Sub-Trust” ), a sub-trust of
MUGC GS Cayman Fund, as at 30 September 2020, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

What we have audited
The Sub-Trust®"s financial statements comprise:

the statements of financial position as at 30 September 2020;

the schedule of investments as at 30 September 2020;

the statements of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statements of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units for the year then ended;

the statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor-"s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Sub-Trust in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Sub-
Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Sub-Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.
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Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-Trust®s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-
Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Sub-Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Sub-Trust in
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in
giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands

29 December 2020
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To the Board of Directors of

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
287-289, Route d*Arlon

L-1150 Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Report on the Audit of the Annual accounts

Opinion

We have audited the annual accounts of Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking
(Luxembourg) S.A. (the "Bank'™), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2019,
and the profit and loss account for the year then ended, and notes to the annual accounts,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying annual accounts give a true and fair view of, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Bank as at December 31, 2019, and of the
results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with Luxembourg legal and
regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the annual accounts.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law of July 23,
2016 on the audit profession (Law of July 23, 2016) and with International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) as adopted for Luxembourg by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur
Financier (CSSF). Our responsibilities under the EU Regulation No 537/2014,the Law of July
23, 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF are further described in the
"Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Annual accounts”
section of our report. We are also independent of the Bank in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the annual account, and have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the annual accounts of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of the audit of the annual accounts as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenues recognition - Commission receivable

Why the matter was considered to be one of
most significant in the audit

How the matter was addressed in the audit

We refer to Summary of significant
accounting policies - Note 2.14 - Revenue
Recognition and Note 21 on Commission
Receivable of the annual accounts.

Commission receivable amounted to USD
135,532,835 as of December 31, 2019.
Commission receivable mainly derives from
fund administration, fiduciary and global
custody operations.

Different underlying bases and rates are
applicable depending on the underlying
investments, agreed terms and services
provided.

The process of commission receivable
recognition for the Bank includes
significant manual interventions.

Accordingly, the calculation of commission
receivable are considered to be a key
audit matter due to the significance of
the amounts involved, combined with the
complexity and operational risk associated
with determining the calculation of the

commission receivable.

We obtained an understanding of the
commission receivable recognition process,
and we reviewed key controls in the
process. Due to deficiencies identified
related to the manual processing of
commission receivable, we did not use a
control reliance approach and our
assurance was obtained based on
substantive audit procedures, consisting
of a combination of tests of details and
substantive analytical procedures.

We developed expectations for the
aggregate amounts per type of commission
income and we compared the expectations to
the amounts recorded by the Bank.

For a sample of the different types of
commissions:
we tested commission receivable by
performing independent recalculation of
the commissions. This also included the
reconciliation of the underlying basis
to external evidence;
we agreed the receipt of the commissions
to subsequent payments.
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Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information stated in the management report but does not include the annual
accounts and our report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé thereon.

Our opinion on the annual accounts does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the annual accounts, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the annual accounts or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of and Those Charged with Governance for the Annual accounts

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
annual accounts in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to
the preparation and presentation of the annual accounts, and for such internal control as
the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual accounts, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Bank"s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank®s financial reporting
process.

Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Annual accounts

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual
accounts as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue a report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law of July 23, 2016 and with ISAs as
adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual accounts.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law of July 23,
2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual accounts, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank®"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank®s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our report of the Réviseur d*Entreprises Agréé to the
related disclosures in the annual accounts or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual accounts, including
the disclosures, and whether the annual accounts represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the annual accounts of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have been appointed as Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé by the Board of Directors on March
24, 2019 and the duration of our uninterrupted engagement, including previous renewals and
reappointments, is 45 years.

The management report is consistent with the annual accounts and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

We confirm that the prohibited non-audit services referred to in the EU Regulation N°
537/2014 were not provided and that we remained independent of the Bank in conducting the
audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de Révision Agréé

Martin Flaunet, Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
Partner

March 10, 2020
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